
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




                                                                                                                                                                                  
             


      


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Discussion:  
 
Attached are the minutes of the November 12, 2013 Special Meeting.     
 
 
 


 


Staff Recommendation: 
 
Council pleasure 
 
 
 
 
 


To: Mayor and Council                         Consent Agenda Item # 1a 
                                               
From: Vicki Vivian, CMC, City Clerk                   
           
 
 


 


 


Subject: 
 
Minutes of the November 12, 2013 Special Meeting          
 
 


 


 


City of  Benson 
      City Council Communication  
 
Regular Meeting                                   December 9, 2013 
 







Page 1 of 7 


THE SPECIAL MEETING 


OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF BENSON, ARIZONA 


HELD NOVEMBER 12, 2013, AT 3:00 P.M. 


AT CITY HALL, 120 W. 6TH STREET, BENSON, ARIZONA 
 


CALL TO ORDER:   
 


Mayor King called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. with the Pledge of Allegiance.                                          


 


ROLL CALL:   
 


Present were: Mayor Toney D. King, Sr., Vice Mayor Al Sacco (arriving at 3:02 p.m.), Councilmembers 


Patrick Boyle, Ron Brooks, Jeff Cook (arriving at 3:47 p.m.), Chris Moncada and Peter Wangsness.   


 


NEW BUSINESS: 


 


EXECUTIVE SESSION:  As per A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(1), Discussion or consideration of employment, 


assignment, appointment, promotion, demotion, dismissal, salaries, disciplining or resignation of public officer, 


appointee or employee of any public body.  The Committee will discuss City Manager interviews. 


 


No executive session was held.  Mayor King stated Kyle McCain notified Staff that he found other 


employment and requested to be removed as an applicant.  Councilmember Brooks stated in other 


interviews for the City Manager position, Council asked some additional questions not listed and asked 


if they should be added to the list for these interviews, adding the questions were how soon the applicant 


would be willing to start and what their pay expectation would be.  Councilmember Moncada stated the 


salary expectation question was included on the list and Council agreed to add the question of when the 


applicant would be willing to start.               


 


1. Interview of William Stephens for the position of the City Manager          


 


The Council interviewed William Stephens.    


 


EXECUTIVE SESSION:  As per A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(1), Discussion or consideration of employment, 


assignment, appointment, promotion, demotion, dismissal, salaries, disciplining or resignation of public officer, 


appointee or employee of any public body.  The Committee will discuss City Manager interviews. 


 


No executive session was held.   


 


2. Interview of Robert Museus for the position of the City Manager                            


 


The Council interviewed Robert Museus.  Councilmember Brooks moved to take a 10 minute recess.  


Seconded by Councilmember Boyle.  Motion passed 7-0.  Council reconvened at 4:05 p.m.  


 


EXECUTIVE SESSION:  As per A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(1), Discussion or consideration of employment, 


assignment, appointment, promotion, demotion, dismissal, salaries, disciplining or resignation of public officer, 


appointee or employee of any public body.  The Committee will discuss City Manager interviews. 


 


No executive session was held.   


  


3. Interview of Kyle McCain for the position of the City Manager 


 


Mayor King had informed the Council at the beginning of the meeting that Kyle McCain had withdrawn 


his application.  No interview was held.   


 







Page 2 of 7 


EXECUTIVE SESSION:  As per A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(1), Discussion or consideration of employment, 


assignment, appointment, promotion, demotion, dismissal, salaries, disciplining or resignation of public officer, 


appointee or employee of any public body.  The Committee will discuss City Manager interviews. 


 


No executive session was held.   


 


4. Ordinance 567 of the Mayor and Council of the City of Benson, Arizona, amending the City Code, 


Chapter 3, “Administration”, to clarify that the City Council by motion may regulate 


Councilmembers’ improper conduct via censure and exclusion order 


 


Mayor King stated he asked for this item to be back on the agenda and then stated with all the fighting 


with the public and the Council, he spoke to Mr. Sims with the League of Cities and verified the 


Council can censure Councilmembers.  Mayor King then stated the Council needs to find a way to stop 


fighting which is why he brought this item forward.   


 


Councilmember Brooks stated there probably is a need to be able to do something about Council 


meetings and for the Mayor to maintain control over them, but he doesn’t agree with being able to get a 


quorum of the Council shut down another Councilman without a some kind of a hearing or a proper way 


to let that Councilmember defend themselves.  Councilmember Brooks then stated he would prefer 


something in the rules or the handbook that has the Mayor talk to the Councilmember and if that doesn’t 


work, the Mayor could bring a second Councilmember to talk to him and if the Councilmember is still 


resistant and there is a problem, then the Council could take another step.  Councilmember Brooks 


stated he wasn’t sure what that step should be, but he agrees the Mayor needs to be able to control the 


meetings.  Councilmember Brooks then stated all Councilmembers have to be tolerant, whether they 


like it or not, but at some point, it’s enough, adding if he was the Chair, he would warn the person and if 


they didn’t stop, he would have them removed from the meeting.   


 


Councilmember Moncada stated he felt the Council should tread lightly on removing a Councilmember 


from a meeting, adding it’s one thing to remove a member of the public because they are being 


disruptive and out of control, but it’s another thing to remove a Councilmember, who is an elected 


voting member of the Council.  Councilmember Moncada stated he would be very hesitant in giving the 


Mayor the authority to do so because it would allow removing a voting member which could affect a 


motion on the floor and theoretically the Mayor could have someone removed if he or another 


Councilmember didn’t like the way that Councilmember was voting or didn’t agree with him, which 


could completely change the balance of the vote.  Councilmember Moncada then stated he thinks the 


Mayor already has the option to have a Councilmember removed from a meeting, but he feels it should 


be the absolute last option.  Councilmember Moncada then stated Ordinance 567 is not just about the 


meetings, it’s about the Mayor or Councilmembers going directly to Staff and directing them, which to 


him is more important than controlling the meetings.  Councilmember Moncada then stated he would 


hesitate to call the Council meetings out of control, adding he does think they are a little embarrassing 


sometimes, but at the same time, Councilmembers were all elected by different type of people who 


expect them to voice their opinions passionately.  Councilmember Moncada then restated he is more in 


favor of the proposed ordinance for the purpose of keeping the Mayor and Councilmembers from going 


to Staff and directing them directly than to control the Council meetings.     


 


Mayor King stated having a Councilmember removed from a meeting is not part of the censure, adding 


the only thing he would do in a meeting is use the gavel to gain control of the meeting.  Mayor King 


then stated censuring a Councilmember would only happen if 4 Councilmembers wanted to censure a 


Councilmember, adding a censure wouldn’t keep a Councilmember from doing his job, it would just be 


an action taken to try and correct a wrongdoing.  Mayor King then restated he was not talking about 


having a Councilmember removed from a meeting, adding he thinks all Councilmembers have 


differences and want to express themselves and have a right to say what they want, but he does think 


they need to learn to say it in a way that doesn’t start a fight.  Mayor King then stated what he is really 


concerned about is Councilmembers going to employees and giving them directives or threatening them. 







Page 3 of 7 


 


Council discussion then focused on what type of steps or procedure to put into place with 


Councilmember Brooks stating he felt the first step should be for the Mayor to address the issue with the 


Councilmember.  Councilmember Brooks then expressed concern over 4 Councilmembers being able to 


abuse the power of censuring a Councilmember for the purpose of shutting a Councilmember down and 


that he felt it was important the Councilmember be able to have the opportunity to defend themselves 


against a censureship with some sort of a hearing.  Councilmember Moncada stated if a motion was 


made to censure a Councilmember, the Councilmember would have the opportunity to explain or give 


his side of the story as part of the discussion.  Councilmember Wangsness stated he thought part of the 


problem was that there was no warning and censuring a Councilmember could just come up at a 


meeting with Councilmember Moncada stating censuring a Councilmember would have to be listed on 


the agenda and therefore couldn’t just come up at a Council meeting.  Further discussion centered on 


putting some sort of procedure in place to try and address the issue before it would come to Council for 


censuring a Councilmember, such as the City Manager addressing employee relationships with Council 


and then the Mayor addressing the issue, if necessary.  Councilmember Moncada stated if a 


Councilmember needs to be counseled and receive a warning first, he was completely ok with that, but 


he was concerned about the City Manager having to address the issue with a Councilmember because it 


could cause a problem for the City Manager since he works directly for them, but he would be in favor 


of the first step being the Mayor addressing the issue and counseling and/or warning the 


Councilmember.         


 


Councilmember Wangsness stated as far as censuring, he wouldn’t like to do it unless there were 6 


Councilmembers in agreement to the censure.  Councilmember Moncada stated he would be ok 


requiring at least 5 Councilmembers to agree to the censure, but not 6.  


 


Councilmember Brooks stated there is a statute that fines an elected official $1,500 for directing 


someone, adding after a warning, a Councilmember would be facing that State statute.  Councilmember 


Brooks then stated the Council is a legislative body, not a judicial body and he has a problem with this 


because he sees too much chance for abuse, especially if the Council doesn’t have all the facts, adding 


there has got to be a proper procedure so just a few Councilmembers who don’t like someone can’t just 


shut that Councilmember down.  Councilmember Brooks then stated he knows the Mayor would like to 


address this issue and he would also, but he didn’t feel this was the right way to go.  Councilmember 


Brooks then stated the Council will be hiring a new City Attorney and he would like the new attorney to 


review the Ordinance and give his opinion on the issue.  Vice Mayor Sacco asked if Councilmember 


Brooks was questioning the legality of the ordinance, adding he spoke to a couple of law firms already 


and other cities have a censureship program in place and the proposed ordinance is perfectly legal.  Vice 


Mayor Sacco then stated the Councilmembers can’t be going wild and taking over the Council meetings, 


adding the Mayor has to take control.  Councilmember Wangsness stated the proposed ordinance 


doesn’t address Council meetings, but only relates to Councilmembers behavior with employees.         


 


Councilmember Cook stated the ordinance before Council addresses City Code Section 3-3, adding 


Section 3-3 currently has subsections A and B while Ordinance 567 creates subsection C and refers to 


violations of subsection A, which is only dealing with any member of the Council giving direction to 


City staff.  Councilmember Cook then stated somehow the Council started off discussing disagreements 


on the Council.  Councilmember Cook then stated he has actually brought up the reasons why 


something is happening at a Council meeting and has been called out of order for doing so, adding 


whatever discussion comes up, the Council needs to discuss what is happening, where and when it 


matters, who it affects and why the Council is discussing it.  Councilmember Cook then stated 


Councilmembers’ behavior at Council meetings or the type of discussion occurring at Council meetings 


is not covered under Ordinance 567 so there is a big phony argument right now about disagreements on 


the Council and this is why Ordinance 567 should be passed.  Councilmember Cook then stated the 


other issues need to be brought up as a second agenda item, but are not on the agenda right now, so 


Council should only be talking about any Councilmember giving direction to Staff in violation of City 


Code Section 3-3(A) and that’s all they should be discussing. 







Page 4 of 7 


 


Councilmember Wangsness stated Councilmember Brooks said giving direction to Staff is already 


addressed in the State statutes with a $1,500 fine with Councilmember Moncada asking if the Council 


should have to resort to charging each other with a violation of State law.   


 


Councilmember Brooks then stated he agreed with Councilmember Cook that Council meetings aren’t a 


part of the proposed ordinance, but he also agreed with the Mayor, adding the Mayor needs to run 


Council meetings and needs to be in control of the meetings and stated the subject needs to be put on a 


future Council agenda.  Councilmember Brooks then stated he doesn’t think the Council should slam a 


Councilmember with a censure and he thinks there should be a warning system prior to a censure, with 


the Mayor warning a Councilmember and if the behavior continues, then legal actions can be taken.     


 


Councilmember Wangsness stated as far as controlling the Council meetings, the Mayor has the gavel 


and should use it when needed.  Councilmember Wangsness then moved to table Ordinance 567 until a 


new City Manager and new City Attorney are hired since they are intimately involved in the issue.  


Seconded by Councilmember Brooks.   


 


Councilmember Cook stated during Council discussion of an agenda item, he generally gives everyone 


a chance to voice their opinion and waits for the opportunity to express his, but he has been gaveled in 


the past.  Councilmember Cook then stated when a motion is made before a discussion is finalized, it 


appears that the discussion is trying to be suppressed, adding the same thing occurs when the Council is 


called to vote before the discussion is over, adding he thinks his freedom of speech is being suppressed 


when he still has things to say about the agenda item.   


 


Mayor King stated he could handle an agenda item either way; first calling for discussion prior to a 


motion and a vote or he could call for discussion prior to a motion and again call for discussion prior to 


a vote.  Councilmember Brooks stated he liked the way the Council usually held discussion before and 


after a motion, adding many times, things come to mind and the Council needs to be able to discuss it.  


Councilmember Wangsness stated sometimes until there is a motion in words, there may be very little 


discussion, but afterward, there could be more, based on the motion.  Councilmember Brooks agreed, 


stating he liked both discussion opportunities.  Councilmember Brooks then reiterated it is important to 


address these issues, but that he would feel more comfortable addressing them after a new City Attorney 


and a new City Manager are hired.   


 


Councilmember Cook stated he didn’t get to finish giving his opinion, adding he is in favor of what 


Councilmember Brooks is suggesting because he thinks when there is an imbalance of votes on Council, 


a censureship can be done out of vengeance rather than trying to make things better.  Councilmember 


Cook then stated he thinks if the Council approves this ordinance; it puts a vehicle in place for that 


vengeance to be carried out and while he is not suggesting Council has that imbalance now, it will exist 


from time to time and again, with this ordinance, the possibility of it being used for vengeance exists.  


Councilmember Cook then stated he also thinks there should be an appeal process if a censure comes up 


for a Councilmember giving direction to Staff as an individual or any number of individual 


Councilmembers directing Staff outside of an official Council meeting, which is what Ordinance 567 


addresses.   


 


Vice Mayor Sacco asked who the Councilmember would appeal to with Councilmember Cook stating 


that is something the Council needs to discuss.  Councilmember Brooks stated a new attorney can help 


the Council facilitate the issues.  Councilmember Brooks then stated the Council could possibly use the 


court system, adding a censure is a restraining order, in a sense, and most of the time, for a restraining 


order, the person at least has the right to go before a judge and explain his side and be heard.  


Councilmember Brooks then stated he doesn’t want the Councilmembers to set themselves up a way to 


abuse each other, adding he likes the idea of talking to each other and he would feel better about just 


working things out.   


 







Page 5 of 7 


Vice Mayor Sacco stated the Councilmembers would all feel better, but asked what should be done 


when there is a Councilmember going wild during a Council meeting and if the Mayor should have the 


Councilmember removed from the meeting with Councilmember Brooks stating the Mayor is in charge 


of the meeting and it would be up to him to stop the meeting or have the person removed if they were 


that wild.   


 


Mayor King then called for a vote on the motion with Councilmember Moncada requesting the motion 


on the floor be repeated.  Mayor King then stated the motion on the floor was to table this issue until a 


new City Attorney was hired and he could review the Ordinance.  Councilmember Wangsness stated his 


motion was to table the issue not only until a new City Attorney was hired, but a new City Manager was 


hired also.  Councilmember Cook confirmed the motion on the floor with City Clerk Vicki Vivian 


stating the motion was to table the issue until a new City Attorney and a new City Manager were hired.  


Motion passed 6-1 with Councilmember Moncada voting nay.   


 


5. Discussion and possible direction regarding the importance of shopping at local businesses 


 


Vice Mayor Sacco stated he wanted the City to buy locally before buying from businesses outside the 


City, adding the City that has to make a decision to shop locally first and if what is needed can’t be 


found locally, then it could be bought from outside businesses.     


 


Councilmember Moncada stated the City has a duty to spend taxpayer dollars reasonably, so 


Department Heads should look at purchases and if it’s a little more expensive to buy it locally, they 


should, but there has to be some common sense.  Councilmember Moncada then stated the City also has 


to spend taxpayer dollars as wisely as possible and has the duty to get the best price, but that quality and 


service are also important factors to consider, adding if Tucson or Sierra Vista can provide something in 


a couple of days when we need it, and Benson can provide it in 2-3 weeks, then it would be reasonable 


to go outside the City, but all things being the same, even priced a little higher locally, he would 


absolutely expect the City to buy locally first.   


 


Councilmember Wangsness added the City could give local businesses the opportunity to bid for 


purchases and may match the lower price.  


 


Councilmember Brooks stated the Council needed to look at the legality involved since the City is 


spending taxpayer money, adding he thinks if the City buys a product locally for $200 and could have 


bought it in Tucson for $100; the public will have an issue they can pursue.  Councilmember Brooks 


then stated there may be a margin the Council can create, giving local businesses an advantage, adding 


he knows the County does something similar with contractors, giving them a 6% advantage over 


outsiders, but he was unsure how it would work with retail and suggested getting a legal opinion.  


Councilmember Brooks then stated he was absolutely behind shopping locally, noting the City also gets 


the sales tax, which is an advantage in addition to supporting businesses here. 


 


Vice Mayor Sacco agreed, but stated if there are local vendors and businesses that can match the price, 


the City should shop locally.  Vice Mayor Sacco then stated the City hasn’t been doing that and 


automatically shops outside the City, adding it is difficult enough to run a business in Benson and make 


money and the City shouldn’t make it more difficult.   


 


Councilmember Brooks restated the Council would need to obtain legal advice to see what can be done 


with Mayor King asking Interim City Manager Brad Hamilton to research the issue and find out if there 


is a certain percentage the City could pay more for products or what the City can do to shop locally 


when the price is more expensive locally.  Mr. Hamilton stated he would research the issue, adding he 


has seen bonus points for being local and other things in contracting, but he would need to consult with 


the City Attorney and find out the legalities involved.  Mayor King then asked Mr. Hamilton to bring 


the issue back to Council after he does his research with Mr. Hamilton stating he would want the 


attorney present to explain his opinion.  Councilmember Moncada stated he would like the information 







Page 6 of 7 


researched not only for contracts, but for the retail purchases, such as parts and material also. 


 


Mr. Hamilton then stated in his department, if he can make purchases locally for a reasonable price, he 


does, noting he also takes into consideration the cost of sending a vehicle and employee to Tucson or 


Sierra Vista.  Mr. Hamilton then stated this is true for most Department Heads, but added if there is a 


significant savings or if the item is not available locally, purchases are made outside the City.  Mr. 


Hamilton then stated the City also utilizes the State contract or the Tucson procurement contract, adding 


the City isn’t large enough to have our own procurement department and is able to piggyback on those 


contracts to get some purchases at a much lower price, which is why some purchases are made outside 


the City. 


 


Councilmember Brooks suggested putting items the City needs to purchase, such as office supplies, on 


the City’s website for local businesses to bid prices on with Mr. Hamilton stating without a procurement 


department, it would be very difficult.  Councilmember Brooks then stated he supports shopping locally, 


but he didn’t want the City to do anything that was illegal and wanted Mr. Hamilton to find out what the 


City could do.  Vice Mayor Sacco stated he would rather see tax dollars stay in Benson, instead of 


Tucson or Sierra Vista. 


 


Councilmember Cook spoke, giving an example of an item he found in Tucson for 50% less than he 


could find it in Benson for, adding if he would have had to shop locally, he would have had to pay 50% 


more for the exact same item.  Councilmember Cook then stated he knows that is not always the case 


and there are times items can be purchased locally and the price difference isn’t that much, but if the 


Council is going to have the attorney look at the issue of shopping locally, he would also like the 


attorney to look at how it will be done without the Council micro-managing every purchase of the City.  


Councilmember Cook then stated when he has asked Staff why they bought outside of Benson; their 


response is universally that they got it the cheapest place they could.  Councilmember Cook then stated 


he has faith that Staff is doing their best, but noted that doesn’t mean he thinks everyone on Staff all the 


time does the best thing.  Councilmember Cook then stated City employees need to look for the best 


deals and Council needs to avoid micro-managing, adding if they put an ordinance together dictating 


how purchases will be make, he thinks Council will be very sorry because that is micro-managing and 


Council can’t do that, adding just the Councilmembers themselves probably couldn’t all agree on where 


to make purchases and at what price.   


  


Councilmember Brooks stated he thought the Council could make a general policy about purchasing 


locally, adding to have someone spend 40 minutes on the phone to save $.25 wouldn’t make sense, but 


the Council needed to find out how much the City can legally spend over the price of a product outside 


the City so they didn’t get in trouble for shopping locally and spending too much money.  


Councilmember Brooks then moved to direct the Interim City Manager to look into the legalities of 


giving an advantage to local businesses over businesses outside the City and what that percentage could 


be.  Vice Mayor Sacco stated he was not asking the Council to violate the law, but was asking them to 


give local businesses a fair shake, adding people get comfortable with their vendors and then shop with 


them and the poor guy in Benson trying to make a living is left out in the cold. 


 


Councilmember Brooks then repeated his motion to direct the Interim City Manager to look into the 


legalities of giving an advantage to local businesses for purchases by the City.  Seconded by 


Councilmember Moncada. 


 


Vice Mayor Sacco then asked what the motion was with Councilmember Brooks repeating his motion 


was to give a directive to the Interim City Manager to look into the legalities of giving local businesses 


an advantage over businesses outside the City.  Vice Mayor Sacco stated he didn’t think local 


businesses would get an advantage over outside businesses with Councilmember Brooks stating if the 


City pays more to shop locally, it would be an advantage to local businesses that outside businesses 


would not get.  Motion passed 6-1 with Vice Mayor Sacco voting nay. 


 







Page 7 of 7 


 


 


Councilmember Moncada then asked Mr. Hamilton to contact the League of Arizona Cities and Towns 


and find out why Mr. Stephens and Mr. Museus were not in the League’s top 10 recommendations with 


Mr. Hamilton stating he would do that and then asked if he should start the background process for Mr. 


Stephens and Mr. Museus.  Council concurred.   


 


Councilmember Brooks stated he would like each Councilmember to choose 4 more applicants to 


interview and get the names to Mr. Hamilton so the interviews could be scheduled should the Council 


decide to interview more applicants.  Councilmember Cook asked why the Council would want to 


interview more candidates when they have interviewed several other candidates and the Council is 


seeming to ignore them as though they were irrelevant or invalid.  Councilmember Brooks then asked 


about setting a meeting to discuss the interviews Council has done and possibly giving Mr. Hamilton 4 


names of additional candidates they would like to interview with Councilmember Wangsness stating he 


is keeping in mind the candidates Councilmember Cook was referring to.  Council then decided to 


schedule a meeting on Thursday, November 14 to discuss the interviews they have conducted and 


submit additional names for interviews should they not select a candidate for the City Manager position.   


 


ADJOURNMENT:  
 


Councilmember Brooks moved to adjourn at 4:46 p.m.  Seconded by Councilmember Moncada.  


Motion passed 7-0. 


 


 


                 ____________________________ 


                 Toney D. King, Sr., Mayor 


  ATTEST: 


 


  ____________________________   


  Vicki L. Vivian, CMC, City Clerk 







                                                                                                                                                                                  
             


      


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Discussion:  
 
Attached are the minutes of the November 14, 2013 Special Meeting.     
 
 
 


 


Staff Recommendation: 
 
Council pleasure 
 
 
 
 
 


To: Mayor and Council                         Consent Agenda Item # 1b 
                                               
From: Vicki Vivian, CMC, City Clerk                   
           
 
 


 


 


Subject: 
 
Minutes of the November 14, 2013 Special Meeting          
 
 


 


 


City of  Benson 
      City Council Communication  
 
Regular Meeting                                   December 9, 2013 
 







Page 1 of 3 


THE SPECIAL MEETING 


OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF BENSON, ARIZONA 


HELD NOVEMBER 14, 2013, AT 4:00 P.M.  


AT CITY HALL, 120 W. 6TH STREET, BENSON, ARIZONA 
 


CALL TO ORDER:   
 


Mayor King called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. with the Pledge of Allegiance.                                          


 


ROLL CALL:   
 


Present were: Mayor Toney D. King, Sr., Vice Mayor Al Sacco, Councilmembers Patrick Boyle, Ron Brooks 


and Jeff Cook, Chris Moncada and Peter Wangsness.  


 


NEW BUSINESS: 


 


1. Discussion of and possible direction to Staff regarding the candidates for the City Manager position          


 


Mayor King asked for input on the most recent candidates and then stated he would begin.  Mayor King stated 


he liked the Colonel because he has run bases for many years and has knowledge of UAV projects since he is 


in the Air Force.  Mayor King then stated there is no difference between a base and a town, adding they both 


deal with planning, finance and people.  Mayor King then stated a Colonel knows how to keep things quiet 


when they should be quiet, knows how to speak out when he needs to speak and deals with a police force and 


golf courses on base, as well as utilities departments, hospitals, libraries and transportation on base, which is 


why he thinks the Colonel is the right man for the job.  Mayor King then stated Mr. Stephens may be in the 


military but Mayor King doesn’t believe the League of Arizona Cities and Towns is right in saying there is a 


difference between military experience and municipal management experience, adding he disagrees 100%, 


adding there is no difference between a base and a city.  Mayor King then stated secondly Mr. Stephens said 


he would come in for $90,000, adding the Council could offer him $80,000 and let Mr. Stephens make up his 


mind.  Mayor King then stated Mr. Stephens is retiring from the military and he thinks Council should think 


about him, adding there is the possibility of the UAVs coming to Benson and Mr. Stephens knows the 


language, knows exactly how to talk to the military and how to handle it.  Mayor King then stated Mr. 


Stephens is his pick for the new City Manager. 


 


Councilmember Wangsness stated he came to the same conclusions as Mayor King, adding Mr. Stephens’ Air 


Force background is a benefit for our airport and the UAV possibilities.  Councilmember Wangsness stated 


Mr. Stephens went out of his way to study Benson before his interview and is from Arizona.  Councilmember 


Wangsness then stated he was sure Mr. Stephens has dealt with municipalities and has strong organizational 


skills.   


 


Vice Mayor Sacco stated as a veteran, he takes exception to the comment made about military experience 


being different than municipal management experience, adding the military has better training than any 


civilian company in this country.  Vice Mayor Sacco then stated the military is also very disciplined and think 


things through before a decision is made.   


 


Councilmember Wangsness stated there is also the military tradition of a strong distinction between the 


political side and military side and knowing how to separate the two. 


 


Mayor King then stated Mr. Stephens was a full-blown Colonel and has been in charge of a whole base and 


was responsible for everything on that base and no one could tell him that Mr. Stephens doesn’t know when he 


is spending too much money or not enough.  Mayor King then stated when he lived on base, he had to keep his 


lawn a certain way or he would get a ticket, adding the military means business and if Mr. Stephens comes to 


Benson, he will know how to take care of business fast.     


 







Page 2 of 3 


Councilmember Boyle stated Mr. Stephens would be outstanding, adding the UAV project may still come to 


Benson and Mr. Stephens might be what seals the deal, adding Mr. Stephens knows everything there is to 


know about the Air Force.  Councilmember Boyle then stated people talk to Council about the need for airport 


improvements and Mr. Stephens is someone who knows everything there is to know about airports and 


improvements and probably knows the way to get the best possible bang for the buck.  Councilmember Boyle 


then stated with all of that and with discipline and everything else, he thinks Mr. Stephens would be 


outstanding, adding he didn’t think the Council could do better at any price.  Vice Mayor Sacco agreed. 


 


Councilmember Moncada stated he had ranked the candidates, with Mr. Scannell being number 1, Mr. 


Stephens being number 2, Mr. Hancock being number 3 and Mr. Museus being number 4.  Councilmember 


Moncada then stated Mr. Scannell interviewed well, has a lot of experience and good references, adding the 


people Councilmember Moncada talked to really liked Mr. Scannell.  Councilmember Moncada then stated he 


ranked Mr. Stephens number 2 because economic development experience was one of the main things Council 


was looking for in a new City Manager and a military base is a natural economic development driver that 


doesn’t require much effort for economic growth, which is one of the main differences between running a base 


and a municipality, but noted Councilmembers brought up some good points regarding the UAV project.  


Councilmember Moncada then stated Mr. Hancock interviewed pretty well and that he ranked Mr. Museus 


number 4, adding he has a lot of experience, but was unemployed for 2 years, which was a concern.   


 


Councilmember Brooks stated he came to the same conclusions for Mr. Scannell, adding he thought Mr. 


Scannell was top notch and if his salary expectation was lower, Mr. Scannell might be his first choice.  


Councilmember Brooks then stated Mr. Scannell knows what he is worth and the Council doesn’t want to go 


that high on salary.  Councilmember Brooks then stated he will concede with the rest of the Council that the 


Colonel really does seem to fit the bill, adding he thinks the employees have not had a true manager for years 


and years and Mr. Stephens manages personnel like crazy and would be great with the public and with 


employees and would get camaraderie going.  Councilmember Brooks then stated Mr. Stephens might be a 


little weak in economic development, since it is not specifically what he does, but he thinks Mr. Stephens can 


do it, adding he is sure Mr. Stephens deals with a lot of professional people and knows how to deal with 


people on that level, adding if Council has to work on that as a committee, he thinks they could.  


Councilmember Brooks then stated he thinks the Council is getting a better deal with Mr. Stephens, because he 


thinks the Council can pick up the ball where Mr. Stephens may not have it but he thinks as far as people 


coming to the City and seeing Mr. Stephens and talking to him, Councilmember Brooks thinks Mr. Stephens 


would represent the City well.  Councilmember Brooks then stated it also stuck in his mind that Mr. Stephens 


is retiring from the military and is not hurting for money, so the salary isn’t a big thing to him, adding what 


stuck in his mind is that Mr. Stephens said the City would be number 1.  Councilmember Brooks then stated he 


would go along with the rest of the Council on Mr. Stephens.      


 


Councilmember Cook stated he agreed Mr. Museus was not the right person for the job.  Councilmember 


Cook then stated Mr. Hancock was his top choice, adding Mr. Hancock was appointed to the Colorado 


Aeronautics Board by the Governor which required Senate approval in 2005 and has been there ever since, 


which has been 8 years; noting that kind of experience with aeronautics is something the City needs as we 


pursue the UAV enterprise at the airport.  Councilmember Cook then stated Mr. Hancock spent his life in 


public service, adding his last job was the Assistant County Manager in Garfield County, Colorado.  


Councilmember Cook then stated there is a difference between Mr. Stephens and Mr. Hancock, adding the 


main thing that stands out to him is that he heard for several years about the problems that come when there is 


a City Manager with a strict disciplinary background.  Councilmember Cook then stated he was referring to 


the Police Chief who was the City Manager, adding there were complaints about that kind of background and 


because of that, he was shying away from Mr. Stephens, who has the strict military background.  


Councilmember Cook then stated Mr. Stephens has also not had to deal with civil law and that’s what the City 


Manager is going to have to deal with every day that he’s on the job and Mr. Stephens has no experience in 


that, adding for those reasons, Mr. Hancock is his first choice.  Vice Mayor Sacco stated he took exception to 


Councilmember Cook’s comments, adding there is better training in the military than in any civilian college in 


the United States with Councilmember Cook stating he didn’t disagree with Vice Mayor Sacco.  Vice Mayor 


Sacco then stated Councilmember Cook implied Mr. Stephens didn’t fit the bill with Councilmember Cook 







Page 3 of 3 


stating he did not imply that.  


 


Councilmember Brooks stated he would like to reiterate Councilmember Boyle’s statement about the UAV 


project, adding he is really hoping it comes to Benson and Mr. Stephens and his Air Force background might 


be a magnet for that.  Councilmember Brooks then stated he didn’t mean to say he wanted to hire Mr. Stephens 


for that reason, but it definitely is a plus for the City, adding as far as what Mr. Stephens lacks and the 


similarities of running a base vs. a city, if the Council gets a good law firm, Mr. Stephens will be able to utilize 


them to get any questions he has answered, so he isn’t too concerned.   


 


Mayor King then stated he wanted to make a comment about the economic development side of it, adding he 


doesn’t think Mr. Stephens needs a lot of economic development experience, but Mr. Stephens does deal with 


economic development, adding Mr. Stephens buys from the military, deals with the exchange store, the 


commissary and has some experience with contractors.  Mayor King stated Mr. Stephens deals with fast food 


restaurants in getting them on the base so does have some economic development behind him, adding it may 


not be a whole lot, but the Council is looking for someone to live here and start getting the job done.  Mayor 


King then moved to start contract negotiations with Mr. Stephens to become the new City Manager.  Seconded 


by Councilmember Moncada, who then stated he wanted the Council to discuss the cost of moving expenses, 


adding he wanted Mr. Stephens to be specific on what he wants for moving costs.  Councilmember Brooks 


stated he would like to actually remove that one section in the contract that addresses moving expenses, adding 


he thinks the Council can live with those expenses and if there is something in there that doesn’t belong, the 


Council can talk to Mr. Stephens about it, but he didn’t think it was proper to tell Mr. Stephens the Council 


would pay to get him moved halfway here, adding that would just be insulting.  Mayor King stated he would 


add that to his motion.  Motion passed 6-1 with Councilmember Cook voting nay. 


 


Mayor King then stated the Council didn’t need to address the next item.   


 


Councilmember Brooks asked Mr. Hamilton if the attorney proposal had been received yet with Mr. Hamilton 


stating there have been email problems, but if it is received, it will be on the agenda for the November 25 


Council meeting.  Councilmember Brooks then asked Mr. Hamilton to send it out as soon as it was received, 


adding he thinks the Council should call a special meeting if it’s before November 25.  Councilmember 


Wangsness stated he would be gone until November 27 for an optical project, adding hopefully, some optical 


buildings will be developed in Benson in the future.    


 


2. Discussion of and possible direction to Staff regarding the position of the City Manager                             


 


Mayor King stated this item was not needed as action had already been taken.  Mayor King then moved to 


table this item.  Seconded by Councilmember Wangsness.  Motion passed 7-0.   


 


ADJOURNMENT:  
 


Councilmember Brooks moved to adjourn at 4:20 p.m.  Seconded by Councilmember Boyle.  Motion passed 


7-0. 


 


 


                 ____________________________ 


                 Toney D. King, Sr., Mayor 


  ATTEST: 


 


  ____________________________   


  Vicki L. Vivian, CMC, City Clerk 







                                                                                                                                                                                  
             


      


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Discussion: 
  
Attached is a list of large and/or unusual invoices processed by the Finance Department during the period from 
November 15, 2013 through November 29, 2013.  The total of the invoices is $251,204.31. 
  
 


           


Arizona Dept of Revenue Sales Tax Remitted 8,225.28     


Arizona Public Safety Retirement Bi-weekly retirement contribution 11,567.50   


Arizona State Retirement Bi-weekly retirement contribution 24,569.82   


Bestway Electric Motor Service Pump repair at the Golf Course 10,809.78   


CDW Government Inc Trend Micro Anti Virus Software (3 year service) 6,868.11     


Cochise County Treasurer Solid Waste Transfer Station Expenses 14,426.35   


Dunlap Oil Company Inc Diesel for City Fleet 4,568.09     


Liberty Fence and Supply Repairs to Fence at the Airport (Lightning Damage) 11,800.00   


Mel's Auto Parts for City Fleet Repair 2,823.22     


Michael Massee City Attorney Fees for October 7,280.00     


Postal Pros Utility Billing and Mailing Service 2,810.44     


Rikertek IT Services, Email Server Failure 8,305.00     


SEAGO Admin Cost for ADA Bathroom Project (CDBG funds) 6,000.00     


Southwest Disposal Monthly Solid Waste Collection Contract 31,062.95   


SSVEC Monthly Electricity Cost 35,377.16   


Verizon City Cell Phone Cost 2,302.88     


188,796.58  


75%


TOTAL LARGE INVOICES


Invoices listed above as a percentage of all invoices processed  
 


 


Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approval of invoices processed for the period from November 15, 2013 through November 29, 2013 
 
 
 
 
 


To: Mayor and Council                         Consent Agenda Item # 1c  
                                               
From: Megan Moreno, Finance Director 
           
 
 


 


 


Subject: 
 
Invoices processed for the period from November 15, 2013 through November 29, 2013 
 
 


City of  Benson 
      City Council Communication  
 
Regular Meeting                      December 9, 2013 
 







CITY OF BENSON Check Register - Council Packets Page:     1


Check Issue Dates: 11/15/2013 - 11/29/2013 Dec 02, 2013  02:21PM


Report Criteria:


Report type:  Summary


Check.Type = {<>} "Adjustment"


GL Period Check Issue Date Check Number Vendor Number Payee Amount


11/13 11/15/2013 387 6756 SOUTHERN ARIZONA DISTRIBUTING 400.55 M


11/13 11/15/2013 388 6756 SOUTHERN ARIZONA DISTRIBUTING 1,641.95 M


11/13 11/27/2013 389 6756 SOUTHERN ARIZONA DISTRIBUTING 714.80 M


11/13 11/27/2013 390 1111 ALLIANCE BEVERAGE DISTRIBUTING CO LLC 362.24 M


11/13 11/22/2013 1113 1490 AZ STATE RETIREMENT    ACC REC 24,569.82 M


11/13 11/15/2013 6000 7856 XPRESS BILL PAY 520.60 M


11/13 11/15/2013 40663 1077 AFFORDABLE ALTERNATIVES INC 44.85


11/13 11/22/2013 40664 8913 ALBERT ESTAVILLO .00 V


11/13 11/15/2013 40665 1140 AMERICAN FENCE CO, INC 145.29


11/13 11/15/2013 40666 5551 ANICLETO D MALDONADO .00 V


11/13 11/15/2013 40667 1063 ANIMAL RURAL KLINIC 395.00


11/13 11/15/2013 40668 1334 ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 917.00


11/13 11/15/2013 40669 11452 ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 367.29


11/13 11/15/2013 40670 1690 AZ DEPT OF REVENUE - SALES TAX 8,225.28


11/13 11/15/2013 40671 1924 BEAVEX, INC 193.60


11/13 11/15/2013 40672 2289 BORDER STATES ELECTRIC SUPPLY 2,283.70


11/13 11/15/2013 40673 2350 BUG-WISER EXTERMINATING CO 374.00


11/13 11/15/2013 40674 3051 CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL 1,034.41


11/13 11/15/2013 40675 2592 CENTRAL ALARM INC 65.00


11/13 11/15/2013 40676 2599 CENTURYLINK 1,682.84


11/13 11/15/2013 40677 2632 CES 139.60


11/13 11/15/2013 40678 2751 CITY OF BENSON - SALES TAX 3,366.24


11/13 11/15/2013 40679 2750 CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 1,181.88


11/13 11/15/2013 40680 2890 COCHISE COUNTY TREASURER 2,351.09


11/13 11/15/2013 40681 3153 CONTINENTAL RESEARCH CORP 306.20


11/13 11/15/2013 40682 3121 COX MEDIA 974.00


11/13 11/15/2013 40683 3333 DELL MARKETING LP 91.54


11/13 11/22/2013 40684 3975 GEOFFREY MCGOFFIN .00 V


11/13 11/15/2013 40685 11463 GRACE BARKER 53.92


11/13 11/15/2013 40686 8909 HAMILTON, RICHARD .00 V


11/13 11/15/2013 40687 4333 HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS 364.64


11/13 11/15/2013 40688 4293 HORIZON IRRIGATION 342.38


11/13 11/15/2013 40689 7895 JAMES HANSEN JR. .00 V


11/13 11/15/2013 40690 4505 JERRY FINK .00 V


11/13 11/15/2013 40691 8914 JOE ROTHERMICH .00 V


11/13 11/15/2013 40692 9902 JR SCHMIDT 204.00


11/13 11/15/2013 40693 4772 KENDALL & SON LTD 676.20


11/13 11/22/2013 40694 4840 LARRY NAPIER .00 V


11/13 11/15/2013 40695 2700 LAWLEY MOTORS 37.69


11/13 11/15/2013 40696 5989 LEGALSHIELD 207.20


11/13 11/15/2013 40697 4907 LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICES 75.00


11/13 11/15/2013 40698 4926 LIBERTY FENCE &  SUPPLY 11,800.00


11/13 11/15/2013 40699 4958 LORENE WHALEY .00 V


11/13 11/15/2013 40700 5067 MARCOS A GATTON 162.00


11/13 11/22/2013 40701 5191 MAX JONES .00 V


11/13 11/15/2013 40702 5645 OFFICE DEPOT, INC 157.64


11/13 11/15/2013 40703 5661 O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE INC 237.85


11/13 11/15/2013 40704 6052 PSOMAS 240.00


11/13 11/15/2013 40705 6066 PUBLIC SURPLUS 312.68


11/13 11/15/2013 40706 7731 PURCELL WESTERN STATES TIRE 562.99


11/13 11/15/2013 40707 6119 R&R PRODUCTS INC 179.62


11/13 11/15/2013 40708 6144 RAY JOHNSON II .00 V


11/13 11/15/2013 40709 6767 SOUTHWEST POLYGRAPH SERVICES, 350.00


M = Manual Check, V = Void Check







CITY OF BENSON Check Register - Council Packets Page:     2


Check Issue Dates: 11/15/2013 - 11/29/2013 Dec 02, 2013  02:21PM


GL Period Check Issue Date Check Number Vendor Number Payee Amount


11/13 11/15/2013 40710 6951 STRONGHOLD SIGNS, INC. 191.82


11/13 11/15/2013 40711 6970 SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY ELEC 35,377.16


11/13 11/22/2013 40712 8907 THELANDER, JAMES .00 V


11/13 11/15/2013 40713 7277 TRANS WEST ANALYTICAL SERVICES LLC 60.00


11/13 11/15/2013 40714 7598 VALLEY IMAGING SOLUTIONS 1,066.55


11/13 11/15/2013 40715 7697 WAXIE SANITARY SUPPLY 1,209.60


11/13 11/22/2013 40716 1096 ACKERLEY ADVERTISING 511.50


11/13 11/22/2013 40717 1095 AIRGAS - WEST, INC 182.58


11/13 11/22/2013 40718 1216 AMERIPRIDE SERVICES INC 159.74


11/13 11/22/2013 40719 1430 AZ PUBLIC SAFETY RETIREMENT 11,567.50


11/13 11/22/2013 40720 2180 BESTWAY ELECTRIC MOTOR SERVICE 10,809.78


11/13 11/22/2013 40721 2329 BRADLEY S CHERRY 93.23


11/13 11/22/2013 40722 2530 CASELLE INC 200.00


11/13 11/22/2013 40723 2554 CDW GOVERNMENT, INC 6,868.11


11/13 11/22/2013 40724 2592 CENTRAL ALARM INC 26.00


11/13 11/22/2013 40725 2599 CENTURYLINK 193.98


11/13 11/22/2013 40726 2667 CHERI SHULL 104.00


11/13 11/22/2013 40727 2750 CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 487.45


11/13 11/22/2013 40728 2784 CNG 1,739.02


11/13 11/22/2013 40729 2839 COCA COLA REFRESHMENTS 184.90


11/13 11/22/2013 40730 2870 COCHISE COUNTY TREASURER 14,426.35


11/13 11/22/2013 40731 3119 COX COMMUNICATIONS 1,091.80


11/13 11/22/2013 40732 1303 CREATIVE BUS SALES 655.13


11/13 11/22/2013 40733 3460 DUNLAP OIL COMPANY INC 4,568.09


11/13 11/22/2013 40734 3704 FARMER BROTHERS COFFEE 33.75


11/13 11/22/2013 40735 4101 GRAYBAR ELECTRIC COMPANY, INC. 50.09


11/13 11/22/2013 40736 4440 J & D STEAM CLEANING 275.00


11/13 11/22/2013 40737 4439 JEFF BOST 300.00


11/13 11/22/2013 40738 4636 JOHN O'CONNOR WHITE 49.75


11/13 11/22/2013 40739 5618 L & E AUTO PARTS LLC 993.59


11/13 11/22/2013 40740 4863 LARRY SANDOR 52.00


11/13 11/22/2013 40741 4907 LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICES 90.00


11/13 11/22/2013 40742 5062 MANTEK 412.41


11/13 11/22/2013 40743 5157 MARYLAND CHILD SUPPORT ACCOUNT 69.81


11/13 11/22/2013 40744 5229 MEL'S AUTO LLC 2,823.22


11/13 11/22/2013 40745 5224 MERIT FOODS OF ARIZONA 632.14


11/13 11/22/2013 40746 5340 MILLER, BALIS & O'NEIL, P.C. 148.25


11/13 11/22/2013 40747 5439 NAOMI GROLEAU 296.00


11/13 11/22/2013 40748 5495 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTION 640.00


11/13 11/22/2013 40749 5624 OAKLEY 423.66


11/13 11/22/2013 40750 5645 OFFICE DEPOT, INC 101.25


11/13 11/22/2013 40751 5978 POSTAL PROS INC 2,810.44


11/13 11/22/2013 40752 6252 RIKERTEK 8,305.00


11/13 11/22/2013 40753 6480 SAN PEDRO VALLEY NEWS 855.82


11/13 11/22/2013 40754 6566 SEMIRA HARPER 168.00


11/13 11/22/2013 40755 6570 SHANNON'S CARQUEST AUTO PARTS 182.11


11/13 11/22/2013 40756 6659 SIMPSON NORTON CORP 62.92


11/13 11/22/2013 40757 6708 SIMS MURRAY, LTD 1,853.00


11/13 11/22/2013 40758 6746 SONORA QUEST LABORATORIES LLC 229.00


11/13 11/22/2013 40759 6750 SOUTHEASTERN  ARIZONA 6,000.00


11/13 11/22/2013 40760 6774 SOUTHWEST DISPOSAL 31,062.95


11/13 11/22/2013 40761 6787 SPECIALTY CIGARS INTERNATIONAL INC 197.95


11/13 11/22/2013 40762 2791 SUPPORT PAYMENT CLEARINGHOUSE 320.92


11/13 11/22/2013 40763 7219 TIAA-CREF AS AGENT FOR JPM 275.00


11/13 11/22/2013 40764 7510 UNITED FIRE EQUIPMENT COMPANY 203.75


11/13 11/22/2013 40765 7402 US FOODSERVICE INC 2,459.33


11/13 11/22/2013 40766 7536 USA BLUEBOOK 158.08


M = Manual Check, V = Void Check







CITY OF BENSON Check Register - Council Packets Page:     3


Check Issue Dates: 11/15/2013 - 11/29/2013 Dec 02, 2013  02:21PM


GL Period Check Issue Date Check Number Vendor Number Payee Amount


11/13 11/22/2013 40767 7598 VALLEY IMAGING SOLUTIONS 118.58


11/13 11/22/2013 40768 7685 WASHINGTON STATE SUPPORT REGISTRY 115.38


11/13 11/22/2013 40769 7753 WICK COMMUNICATIONS 1,185.00


11/13 11/27/2013 40770 1117 ALL CREATURES VETERINARY SVC 811.10


11/13 11/27/2013 40771 1140 AMERICAN FENCE CO, INC 108.10


11/13 11/27/2013 40772 1196 AMERICAN RED CROSS 75.00


11/13 11/27/2013 40773 1063 ANIMAL RURAL KLINIC 765.00


11/13 11/27/2013 40774 1415 ARIZONA MACHINERY 485.87


11/13 11/27/2013 40775 1924 BEAVEX, INC 169.40


11/13 11/27/2013 40776 2749 CITY OF BENSON 150.00


11/13 11/27/2013 40777 2781 CLEAR VIEW GLASS AND TINT 410.56


11/13 11/27/2013 40778 2864 COCHISE COLLEGE 40.00


11/13 11/27/2013 40779 3119 COX COMMUNICATIONS 172.11


11/13 11/27/2013 40780 3421 DIRECTV 167.99


11/13 11/27/2013 40781 11466 DORIS WEAVER 10.00


11/13 11/27/2013 40782 3478 DVA 66.95


11/13 11/27/2013 40783 3593 ELISIA RODRIGUEZ 20.25


11/13 11/27/2013 40784 3704 FARMER BROTHERS COFFEE 289.05


11/13 11/27/2013 40785 3829 FOOTJOY 322.41


11/13 11/27/2013 40786 3983 GEORGE'S AUTOMOTIVE 70.00


11/13 11/27/2013 40787 2700 LAWLEY MOTORS 35.09


11/13 11/27/2013 40788 4907 LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICES 216.00


11/13 11/27/2013 40789 5067 MARCOS A GATTON 155.25


11/13 11/27/2013 40790 5212 MCI COMM SERVICE 60.55


11/13 11/27/2013 40791 5226 MELISSA TIBBITTS 96.86


11/13 11/27/2013 40792 5224 MERIT FOODS OF ARIZONA 448.71


11/13 11/27/2013 40793 5289 MICHAEL J MASSEE 7,280.00


11/13 11/27/2013 40794 11467 MITZY CERVANTEZ 17.40


11/13 11/27/2013 40795 5624 OAKLEY 1,999.85


11/13 11/27/2013 40796 5620 OAKLEYS GARAGE, INC. 1,304.96


11/13 11/27/2013 40797 5663 OFFICE SMART INC 64.70


11/13 11/27/2013 40798 11465 PATRICIA A SCHUE 400.00


11/13 11/27/2013 40799 5923 PING 1,070.49


11/13 11/27/2013 40800 6119 R&R PRODUCTS INC 1,460.99


11/13 11/27/2013 40801 11464 RENE BERNAL 36.00


11/13 11/27/2013 40802 7712 THOMSON REUTERS - WEST 2,182.48


11/13 11/27/2013 40803 7279 TRANSWORLD NETWORK CORP 221.80


11/13 11/27/2013 40804 7291 TREJO REFRIGERATION AND 674.90


11/13 11/27/2013 40805 7493 UNIFIRST CORPORATION 1,821.83


11/13 11/27/2013 40806 7510 UNITED FIRE EQUIPMENT COMPANY 230.35


11/13 11/27/2013 40807 7402 US FOODSERVICE INC 948.41


11/13 11/27/2013 40808 7667 VERIZON WIRELESS 2,302.88


          Grand Totals:  251,204.31


Report Criteria:


Report type:  Summary


Check.Type = {<>} "Adjustment"


M = Manual Check, V = Void Check







CITY OF BENSON Payment Approval Report - Council Packets Page:     1


Report dates: 11/15/2013-11/29/2013 Dec 02, 2013  02:23PM


Report Criteria:


Invoices with totals above $0.00 included.


Only paid invoices included.


 Fund Vendor Name Invoice Number Invoice Date Description Net 


Invoice Amount


GENERAL FUND


10-22250  RETIREMENT PAYABLE


GENERAL FUND AZ STATE RETIREMENT    ACC  111513 11/22/2013 RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTION 24,569.82


GENERAL FUND NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SO 111513 11/22/2013 DEFERRED COMPENSATION 640.00


GENERAL FUND TIAA-CREF AS AGENT FOR JP 111513 11/22/2013 #403743 - VOLUNTARY RETIREMENT 275.00


          Total 10-22250  RETIREMENT PAYABLE: 25,484.82


10-22255  POLICE DEPARTMENT RET PAYABLE


GENERAL FUND AZ PUBLIC SAFETY RETIREME 111513 11/22/2013 P.D. RETIREMENT 11,167.70


GENERAL FUND AZ PUBLIC SAFETY RETIREME 111513A 11/22/2013 F.D. RETIREMENT 399.80


          Total 10-22255  POLICE DEPARTMENT RET PAYABLE: 11,567.50


10-22265  GARNISHMENTS PAYABLE


GENERAL FUND MARYLAND CHILD SUPPORT A L-111513 11/22/2013 #340002729 69.81


GENERAL FUND SUPPORT PAYMENT CLEARIN D-111513 11/22/2013 #000379351700 139.90


GENERAL FUND SUPPORT PAYMENT CLEARIN L-111513 11/22/2013 #000508942900 181.02


GENERAL FUND WASHINGTON STATE SUPPOR D-111513 11/22/2013 IN 3609574 115.38


          Total 10-22265  GARNISHMENTS PAYABLE: 506.11


10-22293  PRE-PAID LEGAL SERVICES


GENERAL FUND LEGALSHIELD 110513 11/05/2013 PRE-PAID LEGAL SERVICE 207.20


          Total 10-22293  PRE-PAID LEGAL SERVICES: 207.20


10-25400  RICO SEIZURE FUNDS PAYABLE


GENERAL FUND PUBLIC SURPLUS 103113 10/31/2013 AUCTION 290.80


          Total 10-25400  RICO SEIZURE FUNDS PAYABLE: 290.80


10-301-71  PROPERTY RENTALS


GENERAL FUND DORIS WEAVER 111813 11/18/2013 REFUND CENTER RENTAL 10.00


          Total 10-301-71  PROPERTY RENTALS: 10.00


10-305-95  OTHER INCOME


GENERAL FUND ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF CO 103013 10/30/2013 DR#2009000588/RETURN OF PROPERTY 367.29


GENERAL FUND PUBLIC SURPLUS 093013 09/30/2013 AUCTION 10.70


GENERAL FUND PUBLIC SURPLUS 103113 10/31/2013 AUCTION 11.18


          Total 10-305-95  OTHER INCOME: 389.17


10-41-310  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - HR


GENERAL FUND SONORA QUEST LABORATORI 103113 10/31/2013 PRE EMPLOYEMENT TESTING 108.00


GENERAL FUND SONORA QUEST LABORATORI 103113A 10/31/2013 PRE EMPLOYEMENT TESTING 80.66


          Total 10-41-310  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - HR: 188.66


10-41-315  LEGAL FEES


GENERAL FUND SIMS MURRAY, LTD 11273 10/31/2013 STAGECOACH TRAILS 1,853.00







CITY OF BENSON Payment Approval Report - Council Packets Page:     2


Report dates: 11/15/2013-11/29/2013 Dec 02, 2013  02:23PM


 Fund Vendor Name Invoice Number Invoice Date Description Net 


Invoice Amount


          Total 10-41-315  LEGAL FEES: 1,853.00


10-41-330  IT SERVICES


GENERAL FUND RIKERTEK 1626 11/19/2013 REPAIRS TO EMAIL 5,105.00


GENERAL FUND RIKERTEK 1627 11/19/2013 IT SERVICES 11/10-11/23/13 3,200.00


          Total 10-41-330  IT SERVICES: 8,305.00


10-41-335  INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS


GENERAL FUND COCHISE COLLEGE 112713 11/27/2013 ROOM RENTAL - 12/6/13 40.00


          Total 10-41-335  INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS: 40.00


10-41-410  UTILITIES


GENERAL FUND CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 102813 10/28/2013 UTILITIES 199.94


GENERAL FUND COX COMMUNICATIONS 110113A 11/01/2013 TV 25.95


GENERAL FUND SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 110813 11/08/2013 POWER 725.96


          Total 10-41-410  UTILITIES: 951.85


10-41-415  TELEPHONE


GENERAL FUND CENTURYLINK 110113A 11/01/2013 MONTHLY SERVICE 53.98


GENERAL FUND COX COMMUNICATIONS 110113A 11/01/2013 MONTHLY INTERNET SERVICES 199.00


GENERAL FUND COX COMMUNICATIONS 110113A 11/01/2013 TELEPHONE 687.85


GENERAL FUND VERIZON WIRELESS 9714864367 11/12/2013 CELL PHONE - MONTHLY 120.58


          Total 10-41-415  TELEPHONE: 1,061.41


10-41-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE


GENERAL FUND BUG-WISER EXTERMINATING  109316 10/01/2013 EXTERMINATING 62.00


GENERAL FUND VALLEY IMAGING SOLUTIONS 012448C 10/31/2013 CHARGE FOR COPIES 495.24


          Total 10-41-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE: 557.24


10-41-440  RENTALS


GENERAL FUND UNIFIRST CORPORATION 103113 10/31/2013 MATS 81.82


          Total 10-41-440  RENTALS: 81.82


10-41-470  UNIFORMS


GENERAL FUND UNIFIRST CORPORATION 103113 10/31/2013 UNIFORMS 36.60


          Total 10-41-470  UNIFORMS: 36.60


10-41-542  ADVERTISING - HR


GENERAL FUND SAN PEDRO VALLEY NEWS 103113 10/31/2013 #6 - HELP WANTED 81.29


          Total 10-41-542  ADVERTISING - HR: 81.29


10-41-610  OFFICE SUPPLIES


GENERAL FUND OFFICE DEPOT, INC 679767144001 10/23/2013 OFFICE SUPPIES 50.15


GENERAL FUND OFFICE DEPOT, INC 679767179001 10/23/2013 OFFICE SUPPIES 5.57


          Total 10-41-610  OFFICE SUPPLIES: 55.72







CITY OF BENSON Payment Approval Report - Council Packets Page:     3


Report dates: 11/15/2013-11/29/2013 Dec 02, 2013  02:23PM


 Fund Vendor Name Invoice Number Invoice Date Description Net 


Invoice Amount


10-41-630  COMPUTER SUPPLIES


GENERAL FUND CDW GOVERNMENT, INC GZ45554 11/08/2013 TREND MICRO SERVICE 3 YEARS 6,868.11


GENERAL FUND DELL MARKETING LP XJ82T75F5 10/22/2013 SCREEN FILTER 91.54


          Total 10-41-630  COMPUTER SUPPLIES: 6,959.65


10-41-640  OPERATING SUPPLIES


GENERAL FUND UNIFIRST CORPORATION 103113 10/31/2013 SUPPLIES 28.56


          Total 10-41-640  OPERATING SUPPLIES: 28.56


10-41-670  VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINT


GENERAL FUND CNG 111813 11/18/2013 #6001 - OIL CHANGE, LUBE, REPLACE HAND 150.00


GENERAL FUND SHANNON'S CARQUEST AUTO  103113 10/31/2013 SHOP LABOR 12.00


          Total 10-41-670  VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINT: 162.00


10-41-705  PROPERTY PAYMENT


GENERAL FUND LORENE WHALEY 71 11/15/2013 PROPERTY PAYMENT 567.27-


          Total 10-41-705  PROPERTY PAYMENT: 567.27-


10-43-415  TELEPHONE


GENERAL FUND VERIZON WIRELESS 9714864367 11/12/2013 CELL PHONE - MONTHLY 83.32


          Total 10-43-415  TELEPHONE: 83.32


10-43-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE


GENERAL FUND VALLEY IMAGING SOLUTIONS 012448B 10/31/2013 CHARGE FOR COPIES 25.68


          Total 10-43-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE: 25.68


10-43-470  UNIFORMS


GENERAL FUND UNIFIRST CORPORATION 103113 10/31/2013 UNIFORMS 39.52


          Total 10-43-470  UNIFORMS: 39.52


10-45-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES


GENERAL FUND SOUTHWEST POLYGRAPH SER 6067 10/29/2013 DISPATCH POLYGRAPH SERVICES 350.00


          Total 10-45-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: 350.00


10-45-410  UTILITIES


GENERAL FUND CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 102813 10/28/2013 UTILITIES 103.41


GENERAL FUND SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 110813 11/08/2013 POWER 118.44


GENERAL FUND SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 110813 11/08/2013 POWER 620.90


          Total 10-45-410  UTILITIES: 842.75


10-45-415  TELECOMMUNICATIONS


GENERAL FUND CENTURYLINK 110113 11/01/2013 MONTHLY PHONE SERVICE 164.30


GENERAL FUND CENTURYLINK 110113A 11/01/2013 MONTHLY SERVICE 56.91


GENERAL FUND CENTURYLINK 110113A 11/01/2013 MONTHLY SERVICE 359.88


GENERAL FUND COX COMMUNICATIONS 110113 11/01/2013 MONTHLY INTERNET SERVICES 179.00


GENERAL FUND MCI COMM SERVICE 111113A 11/11/2013 LONG DISTANCE -AC 28.60


GENERAL FUND TRANSWORLD NETWORK COR 12784658-C91 11/10/2013 INTERNET SVC 54.45


GENERAL FUND VERIZON WIRELESS 9714837682 11/12/2013 PD DATA LINK 400.10







CITY OF BENSON Payment Approval Report - Council Packets Page:     4


Report dates: 11/15/2013-11/29/2013 Dec 02, 2013  02:23PM


 Fund Vendor Name Invoice Number Invoice Date Description Net 


Invoice Amount


GENERAL FUND VERIZON WIRELESS 9714864367 11/12/2013 CELL PHONE - MONTHLY 58.60


GENERAL FUND VERIZON WIRELESS 9714864367 11/12/2013 CELL PHONE - MONTHLY 543.08


          Total 10-45-415  TELECOMMUNICATIONS: 1,844.92


10-45-430  BLDG & EQUIP REPAIRS & MAINT


GENERAL FUND BUG-WISER EXTERMINATING  109330 10/01/2013 EXTERMINATING 29.00


GENERAL FUND VALLEY IMAGING SOLUTIONS 012448F 10/31/2013 CHARGE FOR COPIES 193.99


          Total 10-45-430  BLDG & EQUIP REPAIRS & MAINT: 222.99


10-45-440  RENTALS


GENERAL FUND UNIFIRST CORPORATION 103113 10/31/2013 MATS 26.27


          Total 10-45-440  RENTALS: 26.27


10-45-593  ANIMAL CONTROL MEDICAL


GENERAL FUND COCHISE COUNTY TREASURE 18665 11/08/2013 DOMESTIC ANIMALS 16.00


          Total 10-45-593  ANIMAL CONTROL MEDICAL: 16.00


10-45-594  ANIMAL MEDICAL FROM DONATIONS


GENERAL FUND ALL CREATURES VETERINARY  092513A 09/25/2013 SHORTED INVOICE .70


GENERAL FUND ALL CREATURES VETERINARY  128603 10/03/2013 ANIMAL MEDICAL - ROSIE 12.00


GENERAL FUND ALL CREATURES VETERINARY  128649 10/07/2013 ANIMAL MEDICAL - GUNTHER 257.30


GENERAL FUND ALL CREATURES VETERINARY  128890 10/16/2013 ANIMAL MEDICAL - SNOWBALL, SHEBA, BU 236.00


GENERAL FUND ALL CREATURES VETERINARY  128894 10/16/2013 ANIMAL MEDICAL - SHEBA 17.10


GENERAL FUND ALL CREATURES VETERINARY  129127 10/30/2013 ANIMAL MEDICAL - BUCKEYE 264.00


GENERAL FUND ALL CREATURES VETERINARY  129138 10/31/2013 ANIMAL MEDICAL - ROY 12.00


GENERAL FUND ALL CREATURES VETERINARY  129139 10/31/2013 ANIMAL MEDICAL - BECKY 12.00


GENERAL FUND ANIMAL RURAL KLINIC 100213 10/02/2013 SPAY, NEUTER, RABIES DOG 270.00


GENERAL FUND ANIMAL RURAL KLINIC 100313 10/03/2013 SPAY DOG, RABIES 125.00


GENERAL FUND ANIMAL RURAL KLINIC 103113 10/31/2013 SPAY, 5 - FELINE SPAY & NEUTER, SHOTS 765.00


          Total 10-45-594  ANIMAL MEDICAL FROM DONATIONS: 1,971.10


10-45-610  OFFICE SUPPLIES


GENERAL FUND OFFICE DEPOT, INC 680546481001 10/29/2013 OFFICE SUPPIES 101.25


          Total 10-45-610  OFFICE SUPPLIES: 101.25


10-45-630  COMPUTER SUPPLIES


GENERAL FUND CASELLE INC 53505 11/08/2013 SOURCE CODE ESCROW 1/14 - 12/14 25.00


          Total 10-45-630  COMPUTER SUPPLIES: 25.00


10-45-640  OPERATING SUPPLIES


GENERAL FUND CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL 102613 10/26/2013 SUPPLIES 117.20


GENERAL FUND UNIFIRST CORPORATION 103113 10/31/2013 SUPPLIES 28.55


GENERAL FUND UNIFIRST CORPORATION 103113 10/31/2013 SUPPLIES 12.53


          Total 10-45-640  OPERATING SUPPLIES: 158.28


10-45-670  VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT


GENERAL FUND CNG 111213 11/12/2013 #25 - ABS MODULE, REPAIRS TO LIGHTS 444.02


GENERAL FUND GEORGE'S AUTOMOTIVE 32572 11/13/2013 AC3 -TIRE MOUNT & BALANCE 30.00


GENERAL FUND LAWLEY MOTORS 26206870/1 10/21/2013 #17 - OIL CHANGE 37.69







CITY OF BENSON Payment Approval Report - Council Packets Page:     5


Report dates: 11/15/2013-11/29/2013 Dec 02, 2013  02:23PM


 Fund Vendor Name Invoice Number Invoice Date Description Net 


Invoice Amount


GENERAL FUND LAWLEY MOTORS 26206900/1 11/01/2013 #20 - OIL CHANGE 35.09


GENERAL FUND MEL'S AUTO LLC 103113 10/31/2013 PARTS 576.23


          Total 10-45-670  VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT: 1,123.03


10-46-340  EDUCATION & TRAINING W/ TRAVEL


GENERAL FUND JR SCHMIDT 110813 11/08/2013 REIMBURSE EMT REFRESHER COURSE FE 204.00


          Total 10-46-340  EDUCATION & TRAINING W/ TRAVEL: 204.00


10-46-410  UTILITIES


GENERAL FUND CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 102813 10/28/2013 UTILITIES 103.41


GENERAL FUND SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 110813 11/08/2013 POWER 635.25


          Total 10-46-410  UTILITIES: 738.66


10-46-415  TELEPHONE


GENERAL FUND CENTURYLINK 110113A 11/01/2013 MONTHLY SERVICE 151.79


GENERAL FUND VERIZON WIRELESS 9714864367 11/12/2013 CELL PHONE - MONTHLY 259.12


          Total 10-46-415  TELEPHONE: 410.91


10-46-430  EQUIP REPAIRS & MAINT


GENERAL FUND UNITED FIRE EQUIPMENT COM 347691 09/17/2013 INSPECTION 124.00


          Total 10-46-430  EQUIP REPAIRS & MAINT: 124.00


10-46-432  STATION REPAIRS & MAINT


GENERAL FUND BUG-WISER EXTERMINATING  109360 10/01/2013 EXTERMINATING 37.00


GENERAL FUND UNITED FIRE EQUIPMENT COM 347745 10/15/2013 INSPECTION 203.75


          Total 10-46-432  STATION REPAIRS & MAINT: 240.75


10-46-440  RENTALS


GENERAL FUND UNIFIRST CORPORATION 103113 10/31/2013 MATS 39.93


          Total 10-46-440  RENTALS: 39.93


10-46-640  OPERATING SUPPLIES


GENERAL FUND UNIFIRST CORPORATION 103113 10/31/2013 SUPPLIES 28.55


          Total 10-46-640  OPERATING SUPPLIES: 28.55


10-46-660  FUEL & OIL


GENERAL FUND DUNLAP OIL COMPANY INC 6141 11/01/2013 DIESEL 272.63


          Total 10-46-660  FUEL & OIL: 272.63


10-46-670  VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT


GENERAL FUND L & E AUTO PARTS LLC 103113 10/31/2013 PARTS 3.40


GENERAL FUND MEL'S AUTO LLC 103113 10/31/2013 PARTS 28.29


GENERAL FUND OAKLEYS GARAGE, INC. 19701 11/04/2013 #5001 - VEHICLE REPAIRS 1,304.96


          Total 10-46-670  VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT: 1,336.65


10-49-410  UTILITIES


GENERAL FUND CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 102813 10/28/2013 UTILITIES 262.88







CITY OF BENSON Payment Approval Report - Council Packets Page:     6


Report dates: 11/15/2013-11/29/2013 Dec 02, 2013  02:23PM


 Fund Vendor Name Invoice Number Invoice Date Description Net 


Invoice Amount


GENERAL FUND SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 110813 11/08/2013 POWER 684.56


          Total 10-49-410  UTILITIES: 947.44


10-49-415  TELEPHONE


GENERAL FUND CENTURYLINK 110113A 11/01/2013 MONTHLY SERVICE 235.55


          Total 10-49-415  TELEPHONE: 235.55


10-49-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE


GENERAL FUND BUG-WISER EXTERMINATING  109341 10/01/2013 EXTERMINATING 47.00


GENERAL FUND UNIFIRST CORPORATION 103113 10/31/2013 MATS 67.23


GENERAL FUND VALLEY IMAGING SOLUTIONS 012448 10/31/2013 CHARGE FOR COPIES 95.61


          Total 10-49-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE: 209.84


10-49-640  OPERATING SUPPLIES


GENERAL FUND AFFORDABLE ALTERNATIVES I 5256 10/24/2013 SUPPLIES 44.85


GENERAL FUND UNIFIRST CORPORATION 103113 10/31/2013 SUPPLIES 33.46


          Total 10-49-640  OPERATING SUPPLIES: 78.31


10-49-696  BOOKS


GENERAL FUND DVA INV-68362 11/08/2013 VIDEO'S 66.95


          Total 10-49-696  BOOKS: 66.95


10-50-305  CONTRACT LABOR - DOC


GENERAL FUND ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF CO COB PPE 1025 11/04/2013 DOC LABOR - 10/12-10/25/13 123.50


GENERAL FUND ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF CO COBPPE 1011 10/18/2013 DOC LABOR - 9/2/-10/11/13 162.00


          Total 10-50-305  CONTRACT LABOR - DOC: 285.50


10-50-410  UTILITIES


GENERAL FUND SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 110813 11/08/2013 POWER 1,805.41


          Total 10-50-410  UTILITIES: 1,805.41


10-50-415  TELEPHONE


GENERAL FUND VERIZON WIRELESS 9714864367 11/12/2013 CELL PHONE - MONTHLY 58.60


          Total 10-50-415  TELEPHONE: 58.60


10-50-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE


GENERAL FUND HORIZON IRRIGATION 2W087310 10/22/2013 IRRIGATION PARTS 342.38


GENERAL FUND L & E AUTO PARTS LLC 103113 10/31/2013 PARTS 3.79


          Total 10-50-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE: 346.17


10-50-470  UNIFORMS


GENERAL FUND UNIFIRST CORPORATION 103113 10/31/2013 UNIFORMS 106.93


          Total 10-50-470  UNIFORMS: 106.93


10-50-640  OTHER OPERATING SUPPLIES


GENERAL FUND L & E AUTO PARTS LLC 103113 10/31/2013 PARTS 59.88


GENERAL FUND MEL'S AUTO LLC 103113 10/31/2013 PARTS 10.61







CITY OF BENSON Payment Approval Report - Council Packets Page:     7


Report dates: 11/15/2013-11/29/2013 Dec 02, 2013  02:23PM


 Fund Vendor Name Invoice Number Invoice Date Description Net 


Invoice Amount


GENERAL FUND WAXIE SANITARY SUPPLY 74235146 10/24/2013 SUPPLIES 852.69


          Total 10-50-640  OTHER OPERATING SUPPLIES: 923.18


10-50-660  VEHICLE FUEL & OIL


GENERAL FUND DUNLAP OIL COMPANY INC 6141 11/01/2013 DIESEL 272.63


          Total 10-50-660  VEHICLE FUEL & OIL: 272.63


10-50-670  VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT


GENERAL FUND MEL'S AUTO LLC 103113 10/31/2013 PARTS 38.97


GENERAL FUND MEL'S AUTO LLC 103113 10/31/2013 PARTS 9.86


          Total 10-50-670  VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT: 48.83


10-56-340  EDUCATION & TRAINING


GENERAL FUND MELISSA TIBBITTS 102113 10/21/2013 MILEAGE MESA CLASS PAYROLL ESSENTIA 96.86


          Total 10-56-340  EDUCATION & TRAINING: 96.86


10-56-350  BANK CHARGES


GENERAL FUND XPRESS BILL PAY 11924 11/01/2013 FEES 520.60


          Total 10-56-350  BANK CHARGES: 520.60


10-56-415  TELEPHONE


GENERAL FUND VERIZON WIRELESS 9714864367 11/12/2013 CELL PHONE - MONTHLY 123.33


          Total 10-56-415  TELEPHONE: 123.33


10-56-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE


GENERAL FUND VALLEY IMAGING SOLUTIONS 012448A 10/31/2013 CHARGE FOR COPIES 32.79


GENERAL FUND VALLEY IMAGING SOLUTIONS 012448D 10/31/2013 CHARGE FOR COPIES 187.29


          Total 10-56-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE: 220.08


10-56-610  OFFICE SUPPLIES


GENERAL FUND OFFICE DEPOT, INC 679758912001 10/23/2013 OFFICE SUPPIES 101.92


          Total 10-56-610  OFFICE SUPPLIES: 101.92


10-56-630  COMPUTER SUPPLIES


GENERAL FUND CASELLE INC 53505 11/08/2013 SOURCE CODE ESCROW 1/14 - 12/14 100.00


          Total 10-56-630  COMPUTER SUPPLIES: 100.00


10-57-410  UTILITIES - POOL


GENERAL FUND SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 110813 11/08/2013 POWER 648.43


          Total 10-57-410  UTILITIES - POOL: 648.43


10-57-412  UTILITIES - COMM CENTER


GENERAL FUND CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 110513 11/05/2013 UTILITIES 330.93


GENERAL FUND SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 110813 11/08/2013 POWER 900.01


          Total 10-57-412  UTILITIES - COMM CENTER: 1,230.94







CITY OF BENSON Payment Approval Report - Council Packets Page:     8


Report dates: 11/15/2013-11/29/2013 Dec 02, 2013  02:23PM


 Fund Vendor Name Invoice Number Invoice Date Description Net 


Invoice Amount


10-57-417  TELEPHONE - COMM CENTER


GENERAL FUND COX COMMUNICATIONS 110813 11/08/2013 MONTHLY INTERNET SERVICES 59.00


GENERAL FUND COX COMMUNICATIONS 110813 11/08/2013 TELEPHONE 113.11


GENERAL FUND VERIZON WIRELESS 9714864367 11/12/2013 CELL PHONE - MONTHLY 29.30


          Total 10-57-417  TELEPHONE - COMM CENTER: 201.41


10-57-432  REPAIRS & MAINT - COMM CENTER


GENERAL FUND BUG-WISER EXTERMINATING  109323 10/01/2013 EXTERMINATING 32.00


GENERAL FUND UNITED FIRE EQUIPMENT COM 319294 09/04/2013 INSPECTION 106.35


          Total 10-57-432  REPAIRS & MAINT - COMM CENTER: 138.35


10-58-546  FOOD BANK


GENERAL FUND CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 102813 10/28/2013 UTILITIES 46.60


GENERAL FUND SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 110813 11/08/2013 POWER 295.24


          Total 10-58-546  FOOD BANK: 341.84


10-58-570  FOURTH OF JULY


GENERAL FUND COX MEDIA 900865 07/01/2013 ADVERTISING - 4TH OF JULY 200.00


          Total 10-58-570  FOURTH OF JULY: 200.00


10-58-579  BUTTERFIELD STAGE DAYS


GENERAL FUND COX MEDIA 935315 10/28/2013 BUTTERFIELD 774.00


GENERAL FUND SAN PEDRO VALLEY NEWS 103113C 10/31/2013 #4108 - BUTTERFIELD ADS OCT & SEPTEMB 312.48


GENERAL FUND WICK COMMUNICATIONS 103113A 10/31/2013 #1039 - BUTTERFIELD ADS 395.00


          Total 10-58-579  BUTTERFIELD STAGE DAYS: 1,481.48


10-58-582  HOLIDAY TREE & LIGHTING


GENERAL FUND JEFF BOST 111913 11/19/2013 ENTERTAINMENT - TREE LIGHTING CEREM 300.00


          Total 10-58-582  HOLIDAY TREE & LIGHTING: 300.00


10-60-410  UTILITIES


GENERAL FUND CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 102813 10/28/2013 UTILITIES 38.76


GENERAL FUND SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 110813 11/08/2013 POWER 135.20


          Total 10-60-410  UTILITIES: 173.96


10-60-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE


GENERAL FUND BUG-WISER EXTERMINATING  109348 10/01/2013 EXTERMINATING 37.00


GENERAL FUND UNIFIRST CORPORATION 103113 10/31/2013 MATS 29.51


GENERAL FUND VALLEY IMAGING SOLUTIONS 012448E 10/31/2013 CHARGE FOR COPIES 35.95


          Total 10-60-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE: 102.46


10-60-540  PUBLIC NOTICES, ADVERTISING


GENERAL FUND WICK COMMUNICATIONS 103113 10/31/2013 #2245 - TRAVLERS GUIDE 395.00


          Total 10-60-540  PUBLIC NOTICES, ADVERTISING: 395.00


10-60-640  OTHER OPERATING SUPPLIES


GENERAL FUND UNIFIRST CORPORATION 103113 10/31/2013 SUPPLIES 28.55







CITY OF BENSON Payment Approval Report - Council Packets Page:     9


Report dates: 11/15/2013-11/29/2013 Dec 02, 2013  02:23PM


 Fund Vendor Name Invoice Number Invoice Date Description Net 


Invoice Amount


          Total 10-60-640  OTHER OPERATING SUPPLIES: 28.55


10-61-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES


GENERAL FUND MICHAEL J MASSEE 1102 11/26/2013 OCTOBER 2013 BILLING 7,280.00


GENERAL FUND THOMSON REUTERS - WEST 828415245 11/04/2013 MONTHLY CHARGES/2013 BOOKS 2,182.48


          Total 10-61-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: 9,462.48


10-61-610  OFFICE SUPPLIES


GENERAL FUND OFFICE SMART INC 187083I 11/12/2013 OFFICE SUPPLIES 64.70


          Total 10-61-610  OFFICE SUPPLIES: 64.70


10-62-540  PUBLIC NOTICES, ADVERTISING


GENERAL FUND SAN PEDRO VALLEY NEWS 103113 10/31/2013 ORDINANCE #566 & 565 376.69


          Total 10-62-540  PUBLIC NOTICES, ADVERTISING: 376.69


10-65-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES


GENERAL FUND PSOMAS 91554 10/08/2013 RADINE RIDGE III - 8/23-9/26/13 240.00


          Total 10-65-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: 240.00


10-65-410  UTILITIES


GENERAL FUND SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 110813 11/08/2013 POWER 196.28


          Total 10-65-410  UTILITIES: 196.28


10-65-415  TELEPHONE


GENERAL FUND CENTURYLINK 110113B 11/01/2013 MONTHLY TELEPHONE 150.43


GENERAL FUND TRANSWORLD NETWORK COR 12784660-C92 11/10/2013 INTERNET SVC 58.45


GENERAL FUND VERIZON WIRELESS 9714864367 11/12/2013 CELL PHONE - MONTHLY 104.03


          Total 10-65-415  TELEPHONE: 312.91


10-65-440  RENTALS


GENERAL FUND UNIFIRST CORPORATION 103113 10/31/2013 MATS 97.37


          Total 10-65-440  RENTALS: 97.37


10-65-670  VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT


GENERAL FUND MEL'S AUTO LLC 103113 10/31/2013 PARTS 31.73


          Total 10-65-670  VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT: 31.73


          Total GENERAL FUND: 91,050.03


TRANSIT FUND


14-40-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES


TRANSIT FUND BRADLEY S CHERRY 111813 11/18/2013 CONTRACT LABOR TRANSIT DRIVER- 11/18/ 93.23


TRANSIT FUND JOHN O'CONNOR WHITE 111213 11/12/2013 TRANSIT DRIVER 11/12/13 49.75


          Total 14-40-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: 142.98


14-40-415  TELEPHONE


TRANSIT FUND VERIZON WIRELESS 9714864367 11/12/2013 CELL PHONE - MONTHLY 117.20







CITY OF BENSON Payment Approval Report - Council Packets Page:     10


Report dates: 11/15/2013-11/29/2013 Dec 02, 2013  02:23PM


 Fund Vendor Name Invoice Number Invoice Date Description Net 


Invoice Amount


          Total 14-40-415  TELEPHONE: 117.20


14-40-670  VEHICLE MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS


TRANSIT FUND CNG 110913 11/09/2013 #7004 - OIL CHANGE, INSPECT BRAKES 105.00


TRANSIT FUND CREATIVE BUS SALES 11010210 10/03/2013 MIRRORS #7005 & 7004 655.13


TRANSIT FUND MEL'S AUTO LLC 103113 10/31/2013 PARTS 1,001.76


          Total 14-40-670  VEHICLE MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS: 1,761.89


          Total TRANSIT FUND: 2,022.07


STREET FUND


20-40-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES


STREET FUND CHERI SHULL 111313 11/13/2013 REIMBURSE CDL PHYSICAL PW EMPLOYEE 104.00


          Total 20-40-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: 104.00


20-40-305  CONTRACT LABOR - DOC


STREET FUND ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF CO COB PPE 1025 11/04/2013 DOC LABOR - 10/12-10/25/13 130.00


STREET FUND ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF CO COBPPE 1011 10/18/2013 DOC LABOR - 9/2/-10/11/13 171.00


          Total 20-40-305  CONTRACT LABOR - DOC: 301.00


20-40-410  UTILITIES


STREET FUND SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 110813 11/08/2013 POWER 5,134.08


STREET FUND SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 110813 11/08/2013 POWER 12.26


STREET FUND SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 110813 11/08/2013 POWER 1,897.93


          Total 20-40-410  UTILITIES: 7,044.27


20-40-415  TELEPHONE


STREET FUND VERIZON WIRELESS 9714864367 11/12/2013 CELL PHONE - MONTHLY 87.90


          Total 20-40-415  TELEPHONE: 87.90


20-40-470  UNIFORMS


STREET FUND UNIFIRST CORPORATION 103113 10/31/2013 UNIFORMS 147.37


          Total 20-40-470  UNIFORMS: 147.37


20-40-640  MATERIALS & SUPPLIES


STREET FUND COCHISE COUNTY TREASURE 18665 11/08/2013 YARD WASTE 35.85


STREET FUND MEL'S AUTO LLC 103113 10/31/2013 PARTS 11.25


STREET FUND SHANNON'S CARQUEST AUTO  103113 10/31/2013 TOWELS 3.97


          Total 20-40-640  MATERIALS & SUPPLIES: 51.07


20-40-660  VEHICLE FUEL & OIL


STREET FUND DUNLAP OIL COMPANY INC 6141 11/01/2013 DIESEL 272.63


          Total 20-40-660  VEHICLE FUEL & OIL: 272.63


20-40-670  VEHICLE MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS


STREET FUND CLEAR VIEW GLASS AND TINT A0000903 09/23/2013 #7002 REPLACE WINDOW 410.56


STREET FUND CNG 111013 11/10/2013 #154 - FLAT BED DUMP TRUCK - REPAIRS 315.00


STREET FUND CNG 111013A 11/10/2013 #124 - MISC REPAIRS FOR TRANSMISSION 120.00







CITY OF BENSON Payment Approval Report - Council Packets Page:     11


Report dates: 11/15/2013-11/29/2013 Dec 02, 2013  02:23PM


 Fund Vendor Name Invoice Number Invoice Date Description Net 


Invoice Amount


STREET FUND CNG 111713A 11/17/2013 #129 - OIL CHANGE 45.00


STREET FUND GEORGE'S AUTOMOTIVE 32542 11/08/2013 TIRE REPAIR 20.00


STREET FUND GEORGE'S AUTOMOTIVE 32586 11/14/2013 TIRE REPAIR 20.00


STREET FUND MEL'S AUTO LLC 103113 10/31/2013 PARTS 44.86


STREET FUND MEL'S AUTO LLC 103113 10/31/2013 PARTS 38.98


STREET FUND SHANNON'S CARQUEST AUTO  103113 10/31/2013 SHOP LABOR, VALVE STEM 23.34


STREET FUND SHANNON'S CARQUEST AUTO  103113 10/31/2013 SHOP LABOR 36.00


          Total 20-40-670  VEHICLE MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS: 1,073.74


          Total STREET FUND: 9,081.98


GRANTS FUND


46-60-100  Union Pacific Grants


GRANTS FUND STRONGHOLD SIGNS, INC. 5950 10/22/2013 DIGITAL PRINTS - RAILROAD 191.82


          Total 46-60-100  Union Pacific Grants: 191.82


46-80-100  CDBG PARKS


GRANTS FUND AMERICAN FENCE CO, INC 1739416 11/08/2013 CDBG TEMP FENCE - ADA BATHROOMS 11/ 145.29


GRANTS FUND AMERICAN FENCE CO, INC 1740327 11/14/2013 DAMAGES TO FENCE - ADA BATHROOMS 108.10


GRANTS FUND CES SAF/022334 10/21/2013 ADA RESTROOMS - SUPPLIES 139.60


GRANTS FUND COCHISE COUNTY TREASURE 102313 10/23/2013 ADA BATHROOMS SIDEWALKS, HANDICAP  2,351.09


GRANTS FUND SOUTHEASTERN  ARIZONA 111513 11/15/2013 107-13 ADA PARK RESTROOMS 6,000.00


GRANTS FUND WAXIE SANITARY SUPPLY 74235146 10/24/2013 CDBG - SUPPLIES 247.21


GRANTS FUND WAXIE SANITARY SUPPLY 74243865 10/29/2013 STAINLESS SEEL TOWEL DISPENSER 109.70


          Total 46-80-100  CDBG PARKS: 9,100.99


          Total GRANTS FUND: 9,292.81


GAS FUND


50-12500  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE


GAS FUND PATRICIA A SCHUE 112513 11/25/2013 REFUND CREDIT BALANCE 400.00


          Total 50-12500  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE: 400.00


50-22900  METER DEPOSITS - GAS


GAS FUND AMERICAN RED CROSS 112013 11/20/2013 REFUND GAS DEPOSIT 75.00


GAS FUND GRACE BARKER 111213 11/12/2013 REFUND GAS DEPOSIT 53.92


          Total 50-22900  METER DEPOSITS - GAS: 128.92


50-24500  SALES TAX PAYABLE


GAS FUND AZ DEPT OF REVENUE - SALES  10/13 10/31/2013 UTILITY SALES TAX 5,303.54


GAS FUND CITY OF BENSON - SALES TAX 10/13 10/31/2013 CITY SALES TAX 2,193.72


          Total 50-24500  SALES TAX PAYABLE: 7,497.26


50-40-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES


GAS FUND MILLER, BALIS & O'NEIL, P.C. 27481 11/13/2013 SHARE OF EL PASO CASE 148.25


GAS FUND SONORA QUEST LABORATORI 103113A 10/31/2013 CDL PHYSICAL RECERTIFICATION 40.34


GAS FUND TRANS WEST ANALYTICAL SE 305317 10/28/2013 SAMPLE FEE - TRACTOR SUPPLY 60.00


          Total 50-40-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: 248.59







CITY OF BENSON Payment Approval Report - Council Packets Page:     12


Report dates: 11/15/2013-11/29/2013 Dec 02, 2013  02:23PM


 Fund Vendor Name Invoice Number Invoice Date Description Net 


Invoice Amount


50-40-410  UTILITIES


GAS FUND CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 102813 10/28/2013 UTILITIES 181.20


          Total 50-40-410  UTILITIES: 181.20


50-40-415  TELEPHONE


GAS FUND VERIZON WIRELESS 9714864367 11/12/2013 CELL PHONE - MONTHLY 171.22


          Total 50-40-415  TELEPHONE: 171.22


50-40-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE


GAS FUND CNG 110913A 11/09/2013 TRENCHER REPAIR 46.67


          Total 50-40-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE: 46.67


50-40-440  RENTALS


GAS FUND AIRGAS - WEST, INC 9913587842 10/31/2013 CYLINDER RENTAL 182.58


          Total 50-40-440  RENTALS: 182.58


50-40-470  UNIFORMS


GAS FUND UNIFIRST CORPORATION 103113 10/31/2013 UNIFORMS 223.52


          Total 50-40-470  UNIFORMS: 223.52


50-40-620  PRINTING & POSTAGE


GAS FUND POSTAL PROS INC 72893 08/03/2013 UTILITY BILLS 470.98


GAS FUND POSTAL PROS INC 73028 10/31/2013 UTILITY BILLS 465.84


          Total 50-40-620  PRINTING & POSTAGE: 936.82


50-40-630  COMPUTER SUPPLIES


GAS FUND CASELLE INC 53505 11/08/2013 SOURCE CODE ESCROW 1/14 - 12/14 25.00


          Total 50-40-630  COMPUTER SUPPLIES: 25.00


50-40-640  OPERATING SUPPLIES


GAS FUND BORDER STATES ELECTRIC S 906013257 08/01/2013 CREDIT 480.90-


GAS FUND BORDER STATES ELECTRIC S 906272256 09/24/2013 PARTS 185.50


GAS FUND BORDER STATES ELECTRIC S 906400706 10/18/2013 FREIGHT ON METER 40.91


GAS FUND BORDER STATES ELECTRIC S 906414907 10/22/2013 METER 2,538.19


GAS FUND HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS B659678 10/23/2013 MARKING PAINT 70.87


GAS FUND SHANNON'S CARQUEST AUTO  103113 10/31/2013 SHOP LABOR, VALVE STEM 55.32


          Total 50-40-640  OPERATING SUPPLIES: 2,409.89


50-40-660  VEHICLE FUEL & OIL


GAS FUND DUNLAP OIL COMPANY INC 6141 11/01/2013 DIESEL 272.62


          Total 50-40-660  VEHICLE FUEL & OIL: 272.62


50-40-670  VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT


GAS FUND MEL'S AUTO LLC 103113 10/31/2013 PARTS 3.31


GAS FUND MEL'S AUTO LLC 103113 10/31/2013 PARTS 74.49


GAS FUND MEL'S AUTO LLC 103113 10/31/2013 PARTS 155.38


GAS FUND PURCELL WESTERN STATES TI 6148210 10/23/2013 TIRES #71- ON CALL TRUCK 187.67







CITY OF BENSON Payment Approval Report - Council Packets Page:     13


Report dates: 11/15/2013-11/29/2013 Dec 02, 2013  02:23PM


 Fund Vendor Name Invoice Number Invoice Date Description Net 


Invoice Amount


          Total 50-40-670  VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT: 420.85


          Total GAS FUND: 13,145.14


WATER FUND


51-12500  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE


WATER FUND MITZY CERVANTEZ 110113 11/01/2013 REFUND CREDIT BALANCE 5.24


          Total 51-12500  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE: 5.24


51-300-20  COMMERCIAL WATER REVENUE


WATER FUND RENE BERNAL 112513 11/25/2013 REFUND BULK WATER 36.00


          Total 51-300-20  COMMERCIAL WATER REVENUE: 36.00


51-40-301  CHEMICAL ANALYSIS


WATER FUND LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1316680 11/06/2013 TESTING 153.00


WATER FUND LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1316681 11/06/2013 TESTING 16.00


WATER FUND LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1316682 11/06/2013 TESTING 32.00


          Total 51-40-301  CHEMICAL ANALYSIS: 201.00


51-40-410  UTILITIES


WATER FUND CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 102813 10/28/2013 UTILITIES 122.84


WATER FUND SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 110813 11/08/2013 POWER 8,398.79


          Total 51-40-410  UTILITIES: 8,521.63


51-40-415  TELEPHONE


WATER FUND VERIZON WIRELESS 9714864367 11/12/2013 CELL PHONE - MONTHLY 87.90


          Total 51-40-415  TELEPHONE: 87.90


51-40-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE


WATER FUND CNG 110913A 11/09/2013 TRENCHER REPAIR 46.67


          Total 51-40-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE: 46.67


51-40-470  UNIFORMS


WATER FUND UNIFIRST CORPORATION 103113 10/31/2013 UNIFORMS 182.90


          Total 51-40-470  UNIFORMS: 182.90


51-40-620  PRINTING & POSTAGE


WATER FUND POSTAL PROS INC 72893 08/03/2013 UTILITY BILLS 470.98


WATER FUND POSTAL PROS INC 73028 10/31/2013 UTILITY BILLS 465.84


          Total 51-40-620  PRINTING & POSTAGE: 936.82


51-40-630  COMPUTER SUPPLIES


WATER FUND CASELLE INC 53505 11/08/2013 SOURCE CODE ESCROW 1/14 - 12/14 25.00


          Total 51-40-630  COMPUTER SUPPLIES: 25.00


51-40-640  OTHER OPERATING COSTS


WATER FUND AZ DEPT OF REVENUE - SALES  10/13 10/31/2013 MUNI WATER SALES TAX 106.37







CITY OF BENSON Payment Approval Report - Council Packets Page:     14


Report dates: 11/15/2013-11/29/2013 Dec 02, 2013  02:23PM


 Fund Vendor Name Invoice Number Invoice Date Description Net 


Invoice Amount


WATER FUND HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS B659678 10/23/2013 MARKING PAINT 70.87


WATER FUND HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS B689696 10/30/2013 PARTS 152.02


WATER FUND MEL'S AUTO LLC 103113 10/31/2013 PARTS 19.56


          Total 51-40-640  OTHER OPERATING COSTS: 348.82


51-40-660  FUEL & OIL


WATER FUND DUNLAP OIL COMPANY INC 6141 11/01/2013 DIESEL 272.62


          Total 51-40-660  FUEL & OIL: 272.62


51-40-670  VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT


WATER FUND MEL'S AUTO LLC 103113 10/31/2013 PARTS 63.23


WATER FUND MEL'S AUTO LLC 103113 10/31/2013 PARTS 155.38


WATER FUND MEL'S AUTO LLC 103113 10/31/2013 PARTS 118.15


WATER FUND MEL'S AUTO LLC 103113 10/31/2013 PARTS 74.48


WATER FUND PURCELL WESTERN STATES TI 6148210 10/23/2013 TIRES #71- ON CALL TRUCK 187.66


WATER FUND SHANNON'S CARQUEST AUTO  103113 10/31/2013 SHOP LABOR, VALVE STEM 36.48


          Total 51-40-670  VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT: 635.38


          Total WATER FUND: 11,299.98


WASTEWATER FUND


52-12500  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE


WASTEWATER FUND MITZY CERVANTEZ 110113 11/01/2013 REFUND CREDIT BALANCE 6.20


          Total 52-12500  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE: 6.20


52-40-301  CHEMICAL ANALYSES


WASTEWATER FUND BEAVEX, INC 604102 10/19/2013 TRANSPORT 96.80


WASTEWATER FUND BEAVEX, INC 604785 10/26/2013 TRANSPORT 96.80


WASTEWATER FUND BEAVEX, INC 605476 11/02/2013 TRANSPORT 10/27-11/2/13 72.60


WASTEWATER FUND BEAVEX, INC 606374 11/09/2013 TRANSPORT 11/3-11/9/13 96.80


WASTEWATER FUND LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1315553 10/17/2013 TESTING 15.00


WASTEWATER FUND LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1315633 10/21/2013 TESTING 15.00


WASTEWATER FUND LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1315642 10/21/2013 TESTING 15.00


WASTEWATER FUND LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1315809 10/23/2013 TESTING 15.00


WASTEWATER FUND LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1315870 10/23/2013 TESTING 15.00


WASTEWATER FUND LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1316039 10/28/2013 TESTING 15.00


WASTEWATER FUND LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1316206 10/29/2013 TESTING 15.00


WASTEWATER FUND LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1316262 10/30/2013 TESTING 15.00


WASTEWATER FUND LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1316276 10/30/2013 TESTING 15.00


WASTEWATER FUND LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1316495 10/31/2013 TESTING 15.00


WASTEWATER FUND LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1316517 10/31/2013 TESTING 15.00


WASTEWATER FUND LEGEND TECHNICAL SERVICE 1316661 11/06/2013 TESTING 15.00


          Total 52-40-301  CHEMICAL ANALYSES: 543.00


52-40-410  UTILITIES


WASTEWATER FUND CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 102813 10/28/2013 UTILITIES 122.84


WASTEWATER FUND SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 110813 11/08/2013 POWER 6,618.63


          Total 52-40-410  UTILITIES: 6,741.47


52-40-415  TELEPHONE


WASTEWATER FUND CENTURYLINK 110113A 11/01/2013 MONTHLY SERVICE 89.50







CITY OF BENSON Payment Approval Report - Council Packets Page:     15


Report dates: 11/15/2013-11/29/2013 Dec 02, 2013  02:23PM


 Fund Vendor Name Invoice Number Invoice Date Description Net 


Invoice Amount


WASTEWATER FUND MCI COMM SERVICE 111113 11/11/2013 LONG DISTANCE - WWTP 31.95


WASTEWATER FUND TRANSWORLD NETWORK COR 12779244-C13 11/06/2013 INTERNET SVC - PERK PLANT 54.45


WASTEWATER FUND TRANSWORLD NETWORK COR 12784661-C93 11/10/2013 INTERNET SVC 54.45


WASTEWATER FUND VERIZON WIRELESS 9714864367 11/12/2013 CELL PHONE - MONTHLY 58.60


          Total 52-40-415  TELEPHONE: 288.95


52-40-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE


WASTEWATER FUND CNG 110913A 11/09/2013 TRENCHER REPAIR 46.66


WASTEWATER FUND CNG 111413 11/14/2013 JET ROUTER MACHINE - REPAIRS 210.00


WASTEWATER FUND CONTINENTAL RESEARCH CO 395033-CRC-1 10/24/2013 ULTRABOND 1 DUAL CARTRIDGE 306.20


WASTEWATER FUND MANTEK 1279418 10/17/2013 LUBRA TECH 412.41


WASTEWATER FUND MEL'S AUTO LLC 103113 10/31/2013 PARTS 180.90


          Total 52-40-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE: 1,156.17


52-40-470  UNIFORMS


WASTEWATER FUND UNIFIRST CORPORATION 103113 10/31/2013 UNIFORMS 109.75


          Total 52-40-470  UNIFORMS: 109.75


52-40-620  PRINTING & POSTAGE


WASTEWATER FUND POSTAL PROS INC 72893 08/03/2013 UTILITY BILLS 470.97


WASTEWATER FUND POSTAL PROS INC 73028 10/31/2013 UTILITY BILLS 465.83


          Total 52-40-620  PRINTING & POSTAGE: 936.80


52-40-630  COMPUTER SUPPLIES


WASTEWATER FUND CASELLE INC 53505 11/08/2013 SOURCE CODE ESCROW 1/14 - 12/14 25.00


          Total 52-40-630  COMPUTER SUPPLIES: 25.00


52-40-640  OPERATING SUPPLIES


WASTEWATER FUND HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS B659678 10/23/2013 MARKING PAINT 70.88


WASTEWATER FUND KENDALL & SON LTD 3280 10/23/2013 SACK AWAY 676.20


WASTEWATER FUND USA BLUEBOOK 194290 11/05/2013 #71229  -  SUPPLIES 158.08


          Total 52-40-640  OPERATING SUPPLIES: 905.16


52-40-660  FUEL & OIL


WASTEWATER FUND DUNLAP OIL COMPANY INC 6141 11/01/2013 DIESEL 272.62


          Total 52-40-660  FUEL & OIL: 272.62


52-40-670  VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT


WASTEWATER FUND CNG 111713 11/17/2013 #2010- LUBE, TIRE REPLACEMENT, SHIFT K 210.00


WASTEWATER FUND MEL'S AUTO LLC 103113 10/31/2013 PARTS 155.37


WASTEWATER FUND MEL'S AUTO LLC 103113 10/31/2013 PARTS 15.87


WASTEWATER FUND MEL'S AUTO LLC 103113 10/31/2013 PARTS 14.56


WASTEWATER FUND PURCELL WESTERN STATES TI 6148210 10/23/2013 TIRES #71- ON CALL TRUCK 187.66


WASTEWATER FUND SHANNON'S CARQUEST AUTO  103113 10/31/2013 SHOP LABOR 15.00


          Total 52-40-670  VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT: 598.46


          Total WASTEWATER FUND: 11,583.58







CITY OF BENSON Payment Approval Report - Council Packets Page:     16


Report dates: 11/15/2013-11/29/2013 Dec 02, 2013  02:23PM


 Fund Vendor Name Invoice Number Invoice Date Description Net 


Invoice Amount


SANITATION FUND


53-12500  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE


SANITATION FUND MITZY CERVANTEZ 110113 11/01/2013 REFUND CREDIT BALANCE 5.96


          Total 53-12500  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE: 5.96


53-40-665  COUNTY SOLID WASTE


SANITATION FUND COCHISE COUNTY TREASURE 18665 11/08/2013 TRANSFER STATION EXPENSES 14,374.50


          Total 53-40-665  COUNTY SOLID WASTE: 14,374.50


53-40-667  RESIDENTIAL SERVICE CONTRACT


SANITATION FUND SOUTHWEST DISPOSAL 1234399 10/31/2013 RESIDENTIAL / COMMERICAL PICK UP 16,126.41


          Total 53-40-667  RESIDENTIAL SERVICE CONTRACT: 16,126.41


53-40-668  COMMERCIAL SERVICE CONTRACT


SANITATION FUND SOUTHWEST DISPOSAL 1234399 10/31/2013 COMMERCIAL PICK UP 14,936.54


          Total 53-40-668  COMMERCIAL SERVICE CONTRACT: 14,936.54


          Total SANITATION FUND: 45,443.41


SAN PEDRO GOLF COURSE


55-24500  SALES TAX PAYABLE


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR AZ DEPT OF REVENUE - SALES  10/13 10/31/2013 RETAIL SALES TAX 2,815.37


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR CITY OF BENSON - SALES TAX 10/13 10/31/2013 CITY SALES TAX 1,172.52


          Total 55-24500  SALES TAX PAYABLE: 3,987.89


55-40-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR BUG-WISER EXTERMINATING  109343 10/09/2013 EXTERMINATING 60.00


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR CENTRAL ALARM INC 664311 11/01/2013 ALARM SERVICE - NOVEMBER 2013 65.00


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR LARRY SANDOR 110313 11/03/2013 CONTRACT LABOR GOLF SHOP  - 11/3/13 52.00


          Total 55-40-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: 177.00


55-40-310  INVENTORY- PRO SHOP


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR FOOTJOY 5303995 11/12/2013 INVENTORY 322.41


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR OAKLEY 726140268 09/05/2013 INVENTORY 423.66


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR OAKLEY 726522563 10/03/2013 INVENTORY 1,003.41


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR OAKLEY 726522584 10/03/2013 INVENTORY 996.44


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR PING 11959285 08/21/2013 INVENTORY 1,070.49


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR SPECIALTY CIGARS INTERNATI 100934 10/22/2013 CIGARS 197.95


          Total 55-40-310  INVENTORY- PRO SHOP: 4,014.36


55-40-410  UTILITIES


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 111213 11/12/2013 UTILITIES 8.69


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 110813 11/08/2013 POWER 1,749.01


          Total 55-40-410  UTILITIES: 1,757.70


55-40-415  TELEPHONE


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR CENTURYLINK 110113A 11/01/2013 MONTHLY SERVICE 509.48







CITY OF BENSON Payment Approval Report - Council Packets Page:     17


Report dates: 11/15/2013-11/29/2013 Dec 02, 2013  02:23PM


 Fund Vendor Name Invoice Number Invoice Date Description Net 


Invoice Amount


          Total 55-40-415  TELEPHONE: 509.48


55-40-430  REPAIRS & MAINT - BUILDING


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR GRAYBAR ELECTRIC COMPAN 969543824 11/06/2013 BALLAST 50.09


          Total 55-40-430  REPAIRS & MAINT - BUILDING: 50.09


55-40-540  ADVERTISING


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR ACKERLEY ADVERTISING 13030 10/31/2013 GOLF COURSE ADVERTISING 10/14 170.50


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR ACKERLEY ADVERTISING 13031 10/30/2013 GOLF COURSE ADVERTISING 10/21 170.50


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR ACKERLEY ADVERTISING 13032 10/31/2013 GOLF COURSE ADVERTISING 10/28 170.50


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR SAN PEDRO VALLEY NEWS 103113A 10/31/2013 #2102 - ADS 85.36


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR WICK COMMUNICATIONS 103113B 10/31/2013 #1071 - TRAVELERS GUIDE 395.00


          Total 55-40-540  ADVERTISING: 991.86


55-40-610  OFFICE SUPPLIES


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR VALLEY IMAGING SOLUTIONS 14166A 11/08/2013 TONER 118.58


          Total 55-40-610  OFFICE SUPPLIES: 118.58


55-40-660  FUEL & OIL- GOLF CARTS


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR DUNLAP OIL COMPANY INC 6109 10/18/2013 FUEL 1,757.54


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR DUNLAP OIL COMPANY INC 6158 11/15/2013 FUEL 1,174.80


          Total 55-40-660  FUEL & OIL- GOLF CARTS: 2,932.34


55-40-670  REPAIRS & MAINT- GOLF CARTS


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR L & E AUTO PARTS LLC 103113 10/31/2013 PARTS 837.40


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE INC 102813 10/28/2013 PARTS 46.43


          Total 55-40-670  REPAIRS & MAINT- GOLF CARTS: 883.83


55-40-675  GPS COSTS


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR R&R PRODUCTS INC CD1739150 11/12/2013 GPS 1,112.81


          Total 55-40-675  GPS COSTS: 1,112.81


55-50-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR BUG-WISER EXTERMINATING  109329 10/02/2013 EXTERMINATING 35.00


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR CENTRAL ALARM INC 664312 11/01/2013 ALARM SERVICE 11/1-11/30/13 26.00


          Total 55-50-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: 61.00


55-50-305  CONTRACT LABOR- DOC


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF CO COB PPE 1025 11/04/2013 DOC LABOR - 10/12-10/25/13 173.00


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF CO COBPPE 1011 10/18/2013 DOC LABOR - 9/2/-10/11/13 157.50


          Total 55-50-305  CONTRACT LABOR- DOC: 330.50


55-50-410  UTILITIES


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 110813 11/08/2013 POWER 3,977.12


          Total 55-50-410  UTILITIES: 3,977.12







CITY OF BENSON Payment Approval Report - Council Packets Page:     18


Report dates: 11/15/2013-11/29/2013 Dec 02, 2013  02:23PM


 Fund Vendor Name Invoice Number Invoice Date Description Net 


Invoice Amount


55-50-415  TELEPHONE


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR CENTURYLINK 111013 11/10/2013 MONTHLY SERVICE 43.55


          Total 55-50-415  TELEPHONE: 43.55


55-50-430  REPAIRS & MAINT- IRRIGATION


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR BESTWAY ELECTRIC MOTOR S 4311079 09/18/2013 PUMP REPAIR 10,809.78


          Total 55-50-430  REPAIRS & MAINT- IRRIGATION: 10,809.78


55-50-470  UNIFORMS


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR UNIFIRST CORPORATION 103113 10/31/2013 SUPPLIES 116.89


          Total 55-50-470  UNIFORMS: 116.89


55-50-640  OTHER OPERATING COSTS


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR UNIFIRST CORPORATION 103113 10/31/2013 SUPPLIES 227.26


          Total 55-50-640  OTHER OPERATING COSTS: 227.26


55-50-670  REPAIRS & MAINT- EQUIPMENT


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR ARIZONA MACHINERY P28008 09/11/2013 PARTS 485.87


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR L & E AUTO PARTS LLC 103113 10/31/2013 PARTS 89.12


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE INC 102813 10/28/2013 PARTS 191.42


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR R&R PRODUCTS INC CD1735646 10/25/2013 TIRE 179.62


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR R&R PRODUCTS INC CD1737893 11/06/2013 ROLLER, BED KNIFE 348.18


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR SIMPSON NORTON CORP 1435095-00 10/29/2013 PARTS 62.92


          Total 55-50-670  REPAIRS & MAINT- EQUIPMENT: 1,357.13


55-60-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR J & D STEAM CLEANING 164454 11/18/2013 CLEAN GRILL KITCHEN 275.00


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR MARCOS A GATTON 111413 11/14/2013 CONTRACT LABOR 11/6, 11/7 & 11/11/13 - C 162.00


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR MARCOS A GATTON 112513 11/25/2013 CONTRACT WORKER COOK 11/18-11/25/13 155.25


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR NAOMI GROLEAU 111513 11/15/2013 CONTRACT LABOR - 11/8 - 11/15/13 - BEV C 296.00


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR SEMIRA HARPER 111513 11/15/2013 CONTRACT LABOR 11/9-11/15/13 - BEV CAR 168.00


          Total 55-60-300  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: 1,056.25


55-60-310  FOOD COST


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL 102613 10/26/2013 FOOD 665.40


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR COCA COLA REFRESHMENTS 0245060305 11/14/2013 DRINKS 184.90


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR FARMER BROTHERS COFFEE 59338854SO 11/14/2013 FOOD 33.75


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR FARMER BROTHERS COFFEE 59338923SO 11/20/2013 FOOD 289.05


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR MERIT FOODS OF ARIZONA 964331A 11/05/2013 FOOD 402.13


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR MERIT FOODS OF ARIZONA 965401A 11/12/2013 FOOD 230.01


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR MERIT FOODS OF ARIZONA 966445A 11/20/2013 FOOD 448.71


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR US FOODSERVICE INC 4674366 11/07/2013 FOOD 937.35


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR US FOODSERVICE INC 4809049 11/14/2013 FOOD 1,390.50


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR US FOODSERVICE INC 4945864 11/21/2013 FOOD 948.41


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR US FOODSERVICE INC 5929889 10/31/2013 CREDIT 22.35-


          Total 55-60-310  FOOD COST: 5,507.86


55-60-315  BEER COSTS


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR SOUTHERN ARIZONA DISTRIB 163138 09/20/2013 BEER 565.05


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR SOUTHERN ARIZONA DISTRIB 163203 09/20/2013 BEER 256.60







CITY OF BENSON Payment Approval Report - Council Packets Page:     19


Report dates: 11/15/2013-11/29/2013 Dec 02, 2013  02:23PM


 Fund Vendor Name Invoice Number Invoice Date Description Net 


Invoice Amount


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR SOUTHERN ARIZONA DISTRIB 169303 11/01/2013 BEER 400.55


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR SOUTHERN ARIZONA DISTRIB 170360 11/08/2013 BEER 415.05


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR SOUTHERN ARIZONA DISTRIB 171427 11/15/2013 BEER 405.25


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR SOUTHERN ARIZONA DISTRIB 172450 11/22/2013 BEER 714.80


          Total 55-60-315  BEER COSTS: 2,757.30


55-60-320  LIQUOR COSTS


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR ALLIANCE BEVERAGE DISTRIB 314563120 11/20/2013 LIQUOR COSTS 362.24


          Total 55-60-320  LIQUOR COSTS: 362.24


55-60-420  DIRECT TV


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR DIRECTV 21826230319 11/19/2013 DIRECTV 167.99


          Total 55-60-420  DIRECT TV: 167.99


55-60-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR TREJO REFRIGERATION AND 7524 08/09/2013 REPAIRS TO CONDENSER FAN ON PREP TA 266.02


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR TREJO REFRIGERATION AND 7561 09/15/2013 2 DOOR PREP TABLE REPAIRS 158.39


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR TREJO REFRIGERATION AND 7654 08/16/2013 FRAME MOTOR REPAIR 250.49


          Total 55-60-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE: 674.90


55-60-440  RENTALS


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR AMERIPRIDE SERVICES INC 1700307833 11/06/2013 LINENS 79.87


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR AMERIPRIDE SERVICES INC 1700309556 11/13/2013 LINENS 79.87


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR UNIFIRST CORPORATION 103113 10/31/2013 MOP 7.00


          Total 55-60-440  RENTALS: 166.74


55-60-470  UNIFORMS


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR UNIFIRST CORPORATION 103113 10/31/2013 UNIFORMS 121.76


          Total 55-60-470  UNIFORMS: 121.76


55-60-560  FEES & LICENSES


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR CITY OF BENSON  111913 11/19/2013 LIQUOR LICENSE 150.00


          Total 55-60-560  FEES & LICENSES: 150.00


55-60-580  TRAVEL


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR ELISIA RODRIGUEZ 112213 11/22/2013 REIMBURSE MILEAGE 20.25


          Total 55-60-580  TRAVEL: 20.25


55-60-603  KITCHEN SUPPLIES


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL 102613 10/26/2013 SUPPLIES 251.81


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR US FOODSERVICE INC 4674367 11/07/2013 SUPPLIES 74.41


SAN PEDRO GOLF COUR US FOODSERVICE INC 4809050 11/14/2013 SUPPLIES 79.42


          Total 55-60-603  KITCHEN SUPPLIES: 405.64


          Total SAN PEDRO GOLF COURSE: 44,850.10


AIRPORT







CITY OF BENSON Payment Approval Report - Council Packets Page:     20


Report dates: 11/15/2013-11/29/2013 Dec 02, 2013  02:23PM


 Fund Vendor Name Invoice Number Invoice Date Description Net 


Invoice Amount


56-40-410  UTILITIES


AIRPORT CITY OF BENSON - UTILITIES 110513 11/05/2013 UTILITIES 147.83


AIRPORT SULPHUR SPRINGS VALLEY EL 110813 11/08/2013 POWER 823.66


          Total 56-40-410  UTILITIES: 971.49


56-40-415  TELEPHONE


AIRPORT CENTURYLINK 110113A 11/01/2013 MONTHLY SERVICE 61.45


          Total 56-40-415  TELEPHONE: 61.45


56-40-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE


AIRPORT BUG-WISER EXTERMINATING  109335 10/03/2013 EXTERMINATING 35.00


AIRPORT LIBERTY FENCE &  SUPPLY 111813 11/18/2013 REPAIR FENCE AT AIRPORT 11,800.00


          Total 56-40-430  REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE: 11,835.00


          Total AIRPORT: 12,867.94


FIREMEN'S PENSION FUND


70-40-660  PENSION PAYMENTS


FIREMEN'S PENSION FU ALBERT ESTAVILLO 72 11/15/2013 FIREMEN'S PENSION 200.00-


FIREMEN'S PENSION FU ANICLETO D MALDONADO 11 11/15/2013 FIREMEN'S PENSION 200.00-


FIREMEN'S PENSION FU GEOFFREY MCGOFFIN 72 11/15/2013 FIREMEN'S  PENSION 200.00-


FIREMEN'S PENSION FU HAMILTON, RICHARD 72 11/15/2013 FIREMEN'S PENSION 200.00-


FIREMEN'S PENSION FU JAMES HANSEN JR. 72 11/15/2013 FIREMEN'S PENSION 200.00-


FIREMEN'S PENSION FU JERRY FINK 82 11/15/2013 FIREMEN'S PENSION 200.00-


FIREMEN'S PENSION FU JOE ROTHERMICH 72 11/15/2013 FIREMEN'S PENSION 200.00-


FIREMEN'S PENSION FU LARRY NAPIER 55 11/15/2013 FIREMEN'S PENSION 200.00-


FIREMEN'S PENSION FU MAX JONES 72 11/15/2013 FIREMEN'S PENSION 200.00-


FIREMEN'S PENSION FU RAY JOHNSON II 69 11/15/2013 FIREPENSION 200.00-


FIREMEN'S PENSION FU THELANDER, JAMES 72 11/15/2013 FIREMEN'S PENSION 200.00-


          Total 70-40-660  PENSION PAYMENTS: 2,200.00-


          Total FIREMEN'S PENSION FUND: 2,200.00-


          Grand Totals:  248,437.04


Report Criteria:


Invoices with totals above $0.00 included.


Only paid invoices included.





		Consent 1a - CC - Minutes - 11-12-13 Special Meeting

		Consent 1a - Exhibit - 11-12-13 Special Meeting

		Consent 1b - CC - Minutes - 11-14-13 Special Meeting

		Consent 1b - Exhibit - 11-14-13 Special Meeting

		Consent 1c - CC - Processed Invoices 131202

		Consent 1c - Exhibit 1 - Check Register Summary 11-15-13 thru 11-29-13

		Consent 1c - Exhibit 2 - Payment Approval Report 11-15-13 thru 11-29-13






                                                                                                                                                                                  
             


      


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Discussion:  
 


San Pedro Partners and Harlan Trust own 6 parcels. Five of these parcels are under consideration for 
a General Development Plan amendment.  Of these five parcels under consideration, four are within 
city limits (thus the city also has jurisdiction over zoning) and one is outside city limits (thus the city 
has jurisdiction to categorize the land in the city’s GDP document, but does not have jurisdiction to 
rezone the land).   
 
Mr. Jerry DeGrazia and Mr. Hal Ashton of San Pedro Partners, representing both their parcels and the 
Harlan Trust parcels, wish to re-categorize these 5 parcels from a combination of High Density 
Residential, Medium Density Residential, and Commercial GDP categories to the same GDP 
category, making them all Commercial.  The goal in requesting the Commercial GDP category is to 
obtain the B-2 zoning in the succeeding rezoning process.     
 
There are 3 GDP categories that allow the desired B-2 zoning district-High Density Residential, 
Commercial and Mixed Use.  The GDP document appears to restrict the B-2 uses to residential in the 
High Density Residential GDP category, to restrict the B-2 uses to commercial in the Commercial 
GDP category, but to allow both B-2 residential and commercial uses in the Mixed Use GDP category.  
In order to grant the applicant the most comprehensive B-2 zoning uses with the least amount of 
inconsistency between GDP and Zoning Regulation documents, the Mixed Use GDP category is the 
most appropriate.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


 
Staff Recommendation:  
 
Staff recommends the denial of the application to amend approximately 183 acres compromised of 
parcels 124-01-007C, 14-01-010G, 124-01-010F, 124-01-010Q and 124-01-010R to the Commercial 
GDP category.  
 
 
 
 


To: Mayor and Council                                         Agenda Item # 2 
                                               
From: Michelle Johnson, Planning Technician 
           
 
 


 


 


Subject:  
 
Resolution 33-2013 of the Mayor and Council of the City of Benson, Arizona, approving as part of a Major 
Amendment to the General Development Plan the Redesignation of approximately 183 acres of land from High 
Density Residential and Medium Density Residential to Commercial 
 
 
 


City of  Benson 
      City Council Communication  
 
Regular Meeting                December 9, 2013 
 







 


Page 1 of 1 


RESOLUTION 33-2013 


 


A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


BENSON, ARIZONA, APPROVING AS PART OF A MAJOR AMENDMENT TO 


THE GENERAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN THE REDESIGNATION OF 


APPROXIMATELY 183 ACRES OF LAND FROM HIGH DENSITY 


RESIDENTIAL AND MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL TO COMMERCIAL 


 


 WHEREAS, San Pedro Partners, L.L.C., and Harlan Trust, the owners of 


approximately 183 acres of undeveloped land located within the City limits west of State 


Route 90 and south of Interstate 10 has requested a change to the City’s General 


Development Plan designating the parcels to be Commercial; and 


 


 WHEREAS, the City’s General Development Plan defines the requested changes 


to be a Major Plan Amendment; and 


 


 WHEREAS, the procedure for public notice and hearings for Major Plan 


Amendments set forth in state law and the City’s General Development Plan and City 


Code have been complied with; and 


 


 WHEREAS, the City’s Planning and Zoning Commission has recommended 


approving the application as submitted; and 


 


 WHEREAS, after publishing proper notice, the City Council has held a public 


hearing on the proposed Major Plan Amendment and heard from all interested parties. 


 


 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the City 


of Benson, Arizona, that the proposed Major Amendment to the City’s General 


Development Plan requested by San Pedro Partners, L.L.C. and Harlan Trust is approved 


and the City’s official Land Use Designation Map shall be amended to reflect the changes 


requested in the application and hereby granted.  


 


 PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY 


OF BENSON, ARIZONA, this 9th day of December, 2013. 


 


 


 


    ______________________________ 


    TONEY D. KING, SR., Mayor 


 


 


ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM: 


 


______________________________ ______________________________ 


VICKI L. VIVIAN, CMC, City Clerk GARY COHEN, City Attorney 
 







Introduction 
 


Between San Pedro Partners and Harlan Trust, there are 6 parcels. Five of these 
parcels are under consideration. See Exhibit A.  


 
 


Exhibit A 


Existing owner, parcel number, GDP category and zoning district 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 


 


S
a
n


 P
ed


ro
 P


a
r
tn


er
s 


1
2
4
-0


1
-0


0
7
C


 


H
ig


h
 D


en
si


ty
 R


es
id


en
ti


a
l 


B
-2


 
 


S
a
n


 P
ed


ro
 P


a
r
tn


er
s 


1
2
4
-0


1
-0


1
0


F
 


M
ed


iu
m


 D
en


si
ty


 R
es


id
e
n


ti
a
l 


R
T


 
 


San Pedro Partners 


124-01-007D 


High Density Residential 


R-3 
 


H
a
rl


a
n


 T
ru


st
 


1
2
4
-0


1
-0


1
0
R


 


C
o


m
m


e
rc


ia
l 


R
T


 
 


S
a


n
 P


ed
ro


 P
a


rt
n


er
s 


1
2


4
-0


1
-0


1
0


G
 


H
ig


h
 D


e
n


si
ty


 R
es


id
e
n


ti
a


l 


R
T


 


 


Harlan Trust 


20’ wide parcel strip 


OUTSIDE CITY LIMITS 


124-01-010Q 


Commercial 


County RU-4 
 


Other owners  


OUTSIDE CITY LIMITS 


124-01-010N and 101P 


Commercial 


County RU-4 
 


THIS PARCEL NOT UNDER CONSIDERATION 
 


THESE 2 PARCELS 


 NOT UNDER 


CONSIDERATION 
 


THESE 5 PARCELS ARE  


UNDER CONSIDERATION 
 


1 
 


2 
 


3 
 


4 
 


5 
 







Parcel History 
 
Parcels 124-01-007C and 124-01-007D (007D is not under consideration) are owned by 
San Pedro Partners and were annexed 2005 (Ordinances 495 and 497). Upon 
annexation the GDP category became Low Density Residential and the zoning district 
became Rural Transition (RT).  With Resolution 61-2006, both parcels were categorized 
as High Density Residential. Parcel 124-01-007C was zoned B-2 by Ordinance 511 and 
parcel 124-01-007D was zoned R-3 by Ordinance 510, both in 2007. 
 
In 2009, per Resolution 75-2009, parcels 124-01-010G, 124-01-010F, 124-01-010R and 
124-01-010Q were reclassified to either High Density Residential or Commercial.  
During the process, at their November 3, 2009 meeting, the Planning and Zoning 
Commission recommended the parcels be classified as Medium Density Residential.  
However, at the Council’s November 23, 2009 meeting, the City Council overrode the 
Commission’s recommendation and classified all parcels as HDR or C.   
 
In 2010, as a continuation of the 2009 discussion, parcel 124-01-010F was re-
categorized by Resolution 26-210 to Medium Density Residential, in agreement with 
P&Z’s 2009 recommendation. Resolution 27-2010 confirmed the 2009 decision to 
categorize parcel 124-01-010Q as Commercial. 
 
In 2011, parcels 124-01-010G and 124-01-010F (owned by San Pedro Partners) and 
124-01-010R (owned by Harlan Trust) were annexed into the city by Ordinance 550. 
Upon annexation the zoning district for these parcels became Rural Transition (RT).  
Parcel 124-01-010Q remains outside city limits.* *The City has jurisdiction to determine the 


GDP category for parcels outside city limits, but the city cannot zone this parcel and it remains county 
zoning RU-4.   
 


Current Request 
 


Now, Mr. Jerry DeGrazia and Mr. Hal Ashton of San Pedro Partners, representing both 
their parcels and the Harlan Trust parcels, wish to re-categorize these High Density 
Residential, Medium Density Residential, and Commercial parcels to the same 
category, making them all Commercial.  The goal in requesting the Commercial GDP 
category is to obtain the B-2 zoning in the succeeding rezoning process.       
     
 


Relationship between GDP Category and Zoning Districts 
 


With many allowed uses provided by the Zoning Regulations, the B-2 zoning district is 
the ‘almost anything and everything’ district, allowing both commercial and residential 
uses.  However, the GDP document itself appears to restrict the allowable B-2 uses 
when the B-2 zoning district falls within specific GDP categories. 
 
The GDP document is specific that the B-1 & B-2 zoning districts in the Commercial 
category are for “Business.”  Similarly, the B-1 & B-2 zoning districts in the High Density 
Residential category appear restricted to only residential use as the GDP document 







specifies residential densities.  In both instances, the ‘other’ use is not expressly 
prohibited by the GDP document (residential use within Commercial category areas, 
commercial use in the High Density Residential category areas), but neither are these 
‘other’ uses discussed as being purposeful within the GDP category.   
 
This inconsistency between the GDP document and the Zoning Regulations document 
becomes a question of which document controls.  Generally, the GDP is the controlling 
document because the zoning district must ‘match’ the GDP category that the district 
lies within.   
 
The Mixed Use category, however, appears to intentionally allow both commercial and 
residential uses as listed in the B-2 zoning district. The GDP document specifically 
identifies residential densities and specifically states these densities are “in conjunction 
with commercial/business use.”   Therefore, in order to grant the applicant the most 
comprehensive B-2 zoning uses with the least amount of inconsistency between GDP 
and Zoning Regulation documents, the Mixed Use GDP category is the most 
appropriate.  See Exhibit B. 


 


 


EXHIBIT B 
Excerpts from the adopted GDP document, explaining the purpose and allowable zoning 


districts in the various GDP categories 


 


 


C - Commercial 


 


Purpose: This designation provides for the orderly development of commercial activity 


including retail and wholesale businesses. The designation is intended to promote connectivity of 


new commercial development to existing commercial areas and provide suitable sites for new 


commercial development and use. 


 


Location: Areas designated for Commercial use include the following: 


 


The Exit 302 node. Intersection of I-10 and SR 90; this area is already developing rapidly and 


contains tremendous potential for future growth. 


 


SR 90 Corridor. This area extends from Exit 302 to the Cottonwood Canyon Wash and can be 


serviced by the infrastructure already in place at the Exit 302 node. 


 


The SR 80/Fourth Street Corridor. This strip comprises Benson’s “Main Street” and extends 


roughly from Exit 303 to the City’s eastern boundary. 


 


Eastern portion of SR 80. Several commercial concerns are located along the SR 80 corridor as 


it heads out of the City toward St. David, Tombstone and Bisbee. Another area identified is to 


the east of the City Limits designated for commercial use. 


 







Ocotillo Avenue. Ocotillo Avenue, running north/south, intersects I-10 and Fourth Street and 


contains a range of commercial activity. 


 


Zoning: Two of the City of Benson Zoning Districts can be applied to meet the goals of the C-


Commercial land use designation. 


  


B-1 – Business 


B-2 – Business 


 


 


HDR – High Density Residential 


 


Purpose: This designation provides for high-density residential development within the City. 


The target density of the HDR designation is 10 or more residences per acre; suitable for 


apartment complexes, duplexes, condominium units and townhouses. 


 


Location: As shown on the Proposed Land Use Map, HDR areas comprise a small portion of the 


existing residential area of the City. There are three areas called out specifically for the HDR 


designation, the first is located on the northeast corner of Union Street and Ocotillo Avenue, the 


second is to the east of San Pedro Avenue.  The third is located on West Union Street. 


 


Zoning: Three of the current City of Benson Zoning Districts can be applied to meet the intent 


of the HDR designation, these are: 


 


R-3 (7 residences per acre) 


B-1 (10 residences per acre; when applied to residential use) 


B-2 (10 residences per acre; when applied to residential use) 


 


 


MXU - Mixed Use Designation  


 


Purpose: This designation is intended to provide the opportunity for a variety of land use 


activities interspersed with one-another; primarily for commercial development with attendant 


planned residential uses, recreational uses, recreational vehicle parks and planned area 


developments.  


 


Location: The primary MXU designation area is the approximately six-mile stretch of the SR 90 


between its intersection with Cottonwood Canyon Wash and Kartchner Caverns State Park. 


Other areas include the 18-hole golf course on the City’s eastern boundary adjacent to the San 


Pedro River. 


  


Zoning: Two of the current City of Benson Zoning Districts can be applied to meet the goals of 


the MXU designation. 


  


B-1 (10 residences per acre; in conjunction with commercial/business uses) 


B-2 (10 residences per acre; in conjunction with commercial/business uses) 







Additional GDP Category Considerations 
 


An additional consideration is the fact that the neighbors of Kartchner Vista subdivision 
(Meritage Homes) have requested 300 feet* of open space between their existing 
homes and any future construction.  Since the parcels immediately adjacent to the 
subdivision are and always have been zoned for large lot residential construction (either 
County zoning RU-4 or City zoning Rural Transition), there is an expectation on the 
homeowners’ behalf that they would have significant unbuilt land behind them.    
 
The GDP document does have a Buffer category that encourages future 
owner/developers to leave land vacant.  The GDP Buffer category is currently the only 
tool the City of Benson has to encourage property owners to leave land undeveloped.  
While the GDP document specifically mentions using the Buffer category to create 
separation between residential areas and Interstate 10, it should be noted that the 
Buffer summary generally acknowledges the utility of buffers.  At this time, Benson does 
not have a zoning district that restricts or prohibits development.  Thus waiting until the 
rezoning process to address the neighbors’ desire for a buffer is too late.  See Exhibit C. 


 


EXHIBIT C 
Excerpt from the adopted GDP document, explaining the purpose and allowable zoning 


districts in the Buffer category 


 


 


B – Buffer Area 


 


Purpose: This designation recognizes the need to maintain a separation of residential 


development from the I-10 corridor to buffer noise impacts of the Interstate. 


 


Location: Two small sites are called out as Buffer Areas; the first is located where the Union 


Pacific railroad tucks beneath I-10, the second is a strip between I-10 and the City’s northern 


neighborhood. 


 


Zoning: The Buffer Area land use designation does not seek to prohibit development of any 


kind within its boundaries; its primary purpose is demonstrate the desire for separation of the I-


10 corridor from adjacent residential areas. There are presently no City of Benson zoning 


districts which prohibit development. The Buffer Area is simply a recognition of the utility of the 


buffer. 
 


Because the application requested the Commercial category, the Commercial 
designation was advertised as required by statute.  At the P&Z meeting on November 
21, 2013, there was a question of whether or not a different category can be 
recommended or approved since only the Commercial category was advertised.  The 
industry standard is to allow recommendations/approvals for any category that is less 
intense than what was advertised. In this case, the Mixed Use and Buffer categories are 
less intense than the requested Commercial category.   
 







Possible Options 
 


1) Approve the Commercial category as requested, leaving the inconsistency between 
the GDP document and the Zoning Regulation document as to what uses are truly 
allowed. 
 
2) Approve the Commercial category for the majority area under consideration, leaving 
the inconsistency between the GDP document and the Zoning Regulation document as 
to what uses are truly allowed and approve an agreed upon Buffer area on parcels 124-
01-010Q and 124-01-010R. 
 
3) Deny the Commercial category as requested, leaving the GDP categories as they 
stand. 
 
4) Deny the Commercial category as requested and approve the Mixed Use category to 
remove the inconsistency between the GDP document and the Zoning Regulation 
document as to what uses are truly allowed.   
 
5) Deny the Commercial category as requested and approve the Mixed Use category to 
remove the inconsistency between the GDP document and the Zoning Regulation 
document as to what uses are truly allowed and also approve of an agreed upon Buffer 
area on parcels 124-01-010Q and 124-01-010R.  


 
 


Attachments 
 


GDP Amendment application and application exhibits 
Citizen Review notes and sign in sheet 
Comment letter from Kartchner Vista subdivision neighbors 
Considerations regarding comments from neighbors 
Comment letter from ADOT 
Considerations regarding comments from ADOT 
Considerations regarding utility availability 
Fort Huachuca comments 
Maximum number residences allowed per acre calculations 
Map Series: Original 2006 GDP map;  


        GDP map showing parcels as adopted by Resolution 75-2009; 
         GDP map showing parcels as adopted by Resolutions 26-2010, 27-2010, 


and 28-2010 
        GDP map showing parcels as proposed by the applicant 
        GDP map showing parcels as recommended by staff 


Planning & Zoning Public Hearing draft minutes and sign in sheet 
 































































 
 


Citizen Review Notes  General Development Plan Amendment 


September 18, 2013   7pm 
 
Planning Technician Michelle Johnson introduced herself, explaining that she’s the one who sent letter 
to neighboring property owners.  She further explained that a General Development Plan is the long 
term plan for the city and helps guide where development will take place within the city.   
 
Mr. Jerry DeGrazia introduced himself and Hal Ashton.  He stated that they are requesting an 
amendment to the GDP.  He acknowledged that the city has been working in the past to update the 
entire GDP, but that process has currently stalled. He specified that this amendment is not for the entire 
community, but just for their properties on I-10 and Hwy 90.  
 
Jerry DeGrazia displayed several maps of the I-10/Hwy 90 intersection and his properties and explained 
that these specific properties are the only properties under consideration and that the majority of 
Benson is further east, off the map.  He noted that the existing development around the interchange 
took place under the Commercial designation, which was originally a circle shape around the 
interchange, but did not necessarily include full parcels so the goal is fill in the complete parcel with the 
Commercial designation.   
 
Jerry DeGrazia specified that this process is not a rezoning.  He stated that a GDP amendment would 
help the city make long term plans, in particular with regard to infrastructure, to help draw the desired 
development to the city.  He explained that because it is a new and large interchange it is perceived as a 
strong growth area.  He also noted there is water and sewer at the interchange, though not to the 
properties under consideration.  Mr. DeGrazia further clarified that developers put in the needed 
infrastructure, such as water, wastewater, gas, and roads, which are then accepted by the city and 
integrated into the large city systems such as supplying water to the central city from the water supply 
on these properties.  
 
Mr. DeGrazia stated he had annexed these properties into the city several years ago and then did some 
rezoning on some of the parcels.  The HDR areas were his first purchase and they are zoned B-2 
(Commercial) even though the GDP category is High Density Residential.  He stated that this is a 
mismatch that he would like corrected.   
 
Jerry DeGrazia explained that he’d like to prepare for some of the potential development that the 
location can offer such as the interstate, railroads, the airport, nearby utility pipeline and transmission 
lines and near to the Mexican economy.  He reiterated that major corporations, like the UAS program 
which is interested in at Benson, look for areas with such major infrastructure, but those corporations 
want the background paperwork and initial infrastructure development such as water and sewer already 
done for them.  He acknowledged that actually bringing in corporations and seeing development is a 
long term process and actually isn’t likely to occur in the next few years.  He acknowledged that the 
ideas of development and progress are generally negative but the reality doesn’t have to be a negative 
experience and he wants to create the package of paperwork and initial infrastructure to market Benosn 
and this location specificially on a national scale.  
 
Mr. DeGrazia brought up the privately funded construction on Nueva Janella, of which he is a part, in 
anticipation of future development in the area, but the road itself will someday be owned by the City.  
He pointed out the curves on Titan Road and stated that development will obviously generate more 







 
 


traffic so there are considerations as to how to move traffic.  Mr. DeGrazia also noted that land north of 
I-10 will also be seeing changes because of the new intersection, but lags behind the city boundaries 
south of I-10 because there are no existing sewer or water connections to the north.  
 
There was a question about showing the RR line on the map and question about the zoning of existing 
subdivisions.  Planning Technician Michelle Johnson interjected that the Commercial designation is a 
GDP category and that while a commercial zone is a different level,  a commercial zoning may continue 
to allow for residential uses, whether it’s subdivisions or apartment buildings.  Jerry DeGrazia also 
clarified that the Kartcher Vista subdivision is not under consideration for the GDP amendment or any 
rezoning at this time.  When asked about factories, it was clarified that factories must be located in an 
Industrial GDP classification, which has not even been proposed.  Mr. DeGrazia also clarified that there 
are additional considerations at the time of site-specific development, such as sewer capacity, which 
require further determinations when specific projects comes to fruition.  
 
When asked about the Nueva Janella construction, Mr. DeGrazia pointed out where construction is 
going, and how far past that location the right-of-way has been obtained.  He acknowledged that even 
though it is not being discussed, from a long term stance, a route between Hwy 90 and J-6 is necessary.   
He also noted that additional road engineering and construction through the north part of the 
properties must be considered in the future.  The conversation then turned toward new routes from 
Hwy 90 into town.  Planning Technician Michelle Johnson stated that routes other than the Interstate 10 
are located on the General Development Plan, but they are not being discussed and there is no 
timeframe to have that discussion.  
 
There was also some discussion about how infrastructure, including roads, will be aligned and integrated 
into the existing city system and how that affects what type of development is most feasible where.   
Additionally, there was discussion about surrounding properties such as Smith Ranch and along Highway 
90, how those are zoned and could be used, even though these properties are not part of this proposal.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







mjohnson

Typewritten Text

          







Michelle Johnson, Planning Teclrnician
City of Benson
120 W. 6th Street
Benson, 


^2.85602
October 12.2013


Re: City of Benson General Developmettt Plan ,4mendment


Dea¡ Ms. .Tohnson:


l'hank you f'or the opportunity to provide comnrents regaldiug San Pedro Paftners LLC's
("Developer") application for an amendment to the General Development Plan. While the


unclersìgned homoorúìers are generally supportive of employment and commercial opporlunities


in the area and the requested change to the General Developn-rent Plan, fhe properfv owners


woul{ like to ensure that. at the time of rezoning, the Dev'eloper include the following in the site


plan, at a minimum:


l) No direct access to the neighborhood encompassing the Kartchne¡ Vistas subdivision.


2) Due to the natural view homeowners currently enjoy via backyard view tbncing and


otherwise, a landscape or open space buffer of at least 300 fleet from a:ry sì.ngle farnily residence


in the area.


3) After the 300 ft. bufTer, an 8 ft. high decorative sçreen to protect views ÍÌom adjoining


resiclential lots,
4) Any noise generating use shall not be audible beyond the Developer's property boundary.


5) Any light use shoul<i be c<lnsisient wíth the dark sky ordinance and the fact that there are


no stueer iightu iu Kartchner Vistas. and atl light on the developed property should be shielded


fiom residential lots.


Thaxk you again fol' the opportunity to comment,


Name
1) Carlene Miller


3)
4)
5)
6)
7)
8)


Address
2080 W. Cave Cotton LooP¿.
'l'i{ Ç, t,:á'n'../,'n;- ic'(,
11¿i ì'. L;ru¡¡,,," Ji.
lo /ü J Liuesf"a¿ ,fl,
/o/b 5. Nlttâre'¿Ê *-.
i;,,9-1 :.,, ".-,'ì .


àt'ï:l Lrt 1".1r
/t '- ¿ ) ¡¡,ê


t.u.J'f t"
øi/Y'È, l -l Í;r/,4. -- ".- -,


,(


9) - ìOCi u*) f-r,rru,¡tS,tl S\.
1 0)'
1l) lÓca å' Lì v<Åap- õ/-
t2)
l3)


IO-^v


\q r-







\,{ichelle .lohnson, Planning Tcchn ician
Cìit,v of'Ilensou
120 W, (rth Street
Bensorr. AZ 85602


October 12,2013


Re: Olrv- o.f B¿ns'on General J)evclopment Plan Amendment


Dear Ms. Johnson:


lllhank you fbr the opportrurity to provide comments regarding San Pedro Partners LLC's
("Developer") applicatíon I'or an amendnlent to the (ieneral Development Plân, While the


undersigned homeowners are generÂlly supportive of ernploynrent and commercial opportunities
in the area and the requestecl cbange to fhe General Developnrent Plan, the propertv owners


would likc to ensurc th¿rt. at the tinre of'rezoning. the Developer include the I'ollorving in the site
plan, at ù mi¡rinrum:


1) No direct access to the neighborhood encompassing the Kartchner Vistas subdivision.
2) Due to the natural view homeowners cunently enjoy via back,vard vier.v fencing and


othenvise. a land.scape or open space bufTer of'at least 300lÞet lionr any single family resiclence


in the area.


3) After the 300 11. buflfer, an 8 fi. high decorative screen to protect viervs liom adjoining
residential lot-s,


4) Any noise gsnerating irse shall not be audiblc beyond the Developer's pr'opcrt,v boundary.


5) Any light use should lre iJonsistent rvith the dark sky oldinance ancl the l'act that there are


no street lights in Kaftchner Vistas, a¡rd all light on the developed property should be shieldcd
from residentiâl lots,


Tha¡rk yotr again for the opporlunity to conì¡ìlctìt.


Name
l) Carlene Miller l.oil,ry
2\ Ír¡<auc 1 I c. c<s'. I Sc ^
;i r¡-^C^"\ Re s e-


8) /4,'qrt û. t-{,ueu"2
9) (j;tnte J vl.t{r'cr
l0)
1l)
n)
t3)


?080 W. Cave Cotfon Loop
2-.o?r/ Lù.(Åt.< (¡l4an L."it


]Cß} Lw (a'r- ("1to 
^ LrY)'


'1i14. ?i tå"i T'f,Y" tir'
2*ç'l ¿- \^i {ì'. ;. i" :lbi l':,r i'
Zo Ç( t- (avt eofls^ ,/oo1,


??,y s, L,'*r-,4n: S.t
/.aþoi'¡t- Crtve GjÉþ^ ì-oV


Address Signature


/


L+*







5 properties in question 


Additional 
San Pedro Partners 
property 


Other 
properties 


Restaurants 


 


Subdivision  & 
RV/MH Park 
  


CONSIDERATIONS REGARDING NEIGHBORS’ COMMENTS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Request 1: No direct access with Kartchner Vista subdivision   
It is highly unlikely there would ever be access between the properties owned by San Pedro 
Partners and/or Harlan Trust (these 5 parcels as well as the larger southernmost parcel 
bordering Kartchner Vista) and the Kartchner Vista subdivision because: 


 The existing subdivision roads are surrounded by built parcels or common area.   


 In order to redesign and then move/extend the roads, the private parcels or HOA-
controlled common areas would need to be “given up” and turned into right-of-way.  
Short of eminent domain action, the only means of “giving up” these locations would be 
to re-plat the entire subdivision.   


 As the original sub-divider no longer controls the entire subdivision area, it is unlikely be 
re-platted because the controlling property owners would all need to be in agreement.  


 
 
Request 2: 300’ open space buffer between subdivision and any development 
Some of the single family homeowners of Kartchner Vista purchased their properties with the 
understanding that they backed up to County land with a 1 residence per 4 acres large-lot 
zoning (RU-4).  The parcels owned by San Pedro Partners and Harlan Trust were annexed only 
into city limits in 2005 (southern and westernmost parcel) or 2011 (remaining parcels).   
 
Those who have purchased their homes since annexation in 2011, also purchased with the 
understanding that the neighboring properties were zoned for large lot residential use (RT).  It 
follows that subdivision property owners want to have some distance between their homes and 
any future development since they purchased their homes with the expectation of minimal 
development behind them.  
 







5 properties in question 


Additional 
San Pedro 
Partners 
property 


Other 
properties 


Restaurant
s 


Subdivision  & 
RV/MH Park 
  
 


Following the subdivision boundaries, the requested 300* foot width multiplied by the 
approximately 1116 foot length translates to about 334,800 sq feet or 7.69 acres out of the 183 
acres under discussion. *The requested 300 foot with can be reduced, expanded or denied completely, if the 


legislative body so chooses.  


 
 


 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 


 


 
 
 
 


While there is no GDP category or zoning district that prohibits development completely as the 
neighbors’ request, the most appropriate GDP category for these approximately 8 requested 
acres is the Buffer category (see description of the Buffer category below).  This category was 
specifically designed to allow distance between uses, particularly to reduce noise impacts (see 
neighbors’ request #4).  Under the Buffer category, any zoning district can be requested and 
granted during a rezoning, which is the next step of this process.  (It is known that the B-2 
zoning district will be requested at the rezoning step.)  
 
Since no existing GDP category nor zoning district prohibits development, the most effective 
means of permanently establishing undisturbed land is to place a deed restriction upon the 
agreed upon acreage (which may these approximately 8 acres, may be more acreage or may be 
less) which will be recorded on the property deed and pass to successive property owners.   
 
*The applicant may be willing to “give up” some (maybe not all 8 acres) useable land to show 
good faith toward the neighbors.  Or the applicant may be unwilling to “give up” any acreage 
that could be put to a profitable use.  If it is decided that this buffer is to the greater benefit to 
the city, in order to encourage the applicant to permanently prohibit development on some 
acreage (the approximately 8 acres or more or less), a transfer of development rights can be 
offered. A transfer of development right simply transfers the right to develop to another 
location.  Since the applicant owns adjacent land, the maximum development capacity of the 


300’  
Buffer 
area 







approximately 8 acres (i.e. If B-1 or B-2 zoned, 80 residences =10 units per acre or ‘x’ sq feet of 
commercial floor space) could be allowed to occur on the remaining land, even though that 
would put the remaining land “over the limit.”   
 
B – Buffer Area 


Purpose: This designation recognizes the need to maintain a separation of residential 


development from the I-10 corridor to buffer noise impacts of the Interstate. 


 


Location: Two small sites are called out as Buffer Areas; the first is located where the Union 


Pacific railroad tucks beneath I-10, the second is a strip between I-10 and the City’s northern 


neighborhood. 


 


Zoning: The Buffer Area land use designation does not seek to prohibit development of any 


kind within its boundaries; its primary purpose is demonstrate the desire for separation of the I-


10 corridor from adjacent residential areas. There are presently no City of Benson zoning 


districts which prohibit development. The Buffer Area is simply a recognition of the utility of the 


buffer. 


 
Request 3: 8 ft high decorative fence between the buffer, if any, and the 
development/construction 
Generally, the request or requirement for screening between land uses occurs at the site 
development phase, when a developer knows what (s)he wants to physically build. At this early 
stage, it is difficult to hold the landowner(s) to a screening requirement when it is unknown 
what might be built, when it will occur or who will be doing it.  
 
In this particular case, the current Zoning Regulations require screening only between 
commercial district (B-1 and B-2) parking areas and residential districts (R-1, R-2, R-3).  (see the 
Zoning Regulations Off Street Parking page 73 Required Improvements and Maintenance)  
Because the applicant is requesting the Commercial GDP category, the only zoning districts to 
be considered in the next step of rezoning are commercial zoning districts B-1 and B-2.   
 
Despite the inherent residential nature of the Kartchner Vista subdivision, both the private and 
HOA-owned parcels of the Kartchner Vista subdivision are also zoned B-2 commercial.  
Therefore, if a site plan was proposed tomorrow under these existing Zoning Regulations, no 
fencing would be required to separate the existing residential subdivision and any development 
on these parcels (residential or commercial) because the underlying zoning districts will both be 
commercial.   
 
At the time of actual site development, this issue will be revisited.  Regulations may have 
changed, rezonings may have occurred in the interim or the developer at that time may be 
willing to construct a screen in good faith.   
 
 
 







Request 4: No noise extending to the subdivision 
There are currently no regulations regarding noise or noise impacts between zoning districts in 
the Zoning Regulations.  The request for a buffer, possibly with additional screening to be built 
during site construction, between the existing residential land use and the future development 
is the current best means of negating potential noise impacts.   
 
5.  Request 5: Light trespass 
The Zoning Regulations do have a chapter on outdoor lighting.  These regulations (or future 
provisions, if there are changes over time) will be enforced at the time of site plan review, 
when actual development and construction is proposed.  
 
 
 
 
 
 























CONSIDERATIONS REGARDING ADOT’S COMMENTS 
 


ADOT’s concern about access to the properties 
ADOT is not opposed to the land use change, but warns that any expectation of increased development 
on these properties will require substantial ADOT involvement.  *Note: ADOT owns Titan Road.  ADOT 
also owns Highway 90 so any changes in traffic to Highway 90 must also be approved through ADOT.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
While the application specifically mentions using Titan Road as a primary point of access (paragraph V. 
Circulation of the application), item 4 of ADOT’s letter clearly states that Titan Road and Village Loop in 
their current state are inadequate to serve additional growth.  This comment does not necessarily 
prohibit development of these parcels, as Item 3 does state that ADOT would be amenable to 
considering alternative access (at the applicant/developer’s cost and with future ADOT needs in mind).  
One alternative that the applicant has mentioned repeatedly to staff over the past few years, though 
not mentioned in the application, is shown in red on the above map.  This alternative would require 
extensive ADOT involvement.   
 
Nueva Janella is currently under construction (joint project between San Pedro Partners and the 
Kartchner family who own land south of Kartchner Vista subdivision).  This physical construction 
extends approximately ¼ mile into the southern San Pedro Partners parcel, though the legal right-of-
way, and therefore future construction at the developer’s cost, will go all the way across the southern 
parcel toward Smith Ranch and J-6.  When this stub of Nueva Janella is completed, access to the 
northern parcels would still require additional rights-of-way heading northward.  
Note: Some distance of the under-construction Nueva Janella and all of the future construction is OUTSIDE city limits, across 
state owned land.  When completed, the road will be dedicated to the city, even though it will still be outside city limits. 


Interstate 10 Village 
Loop  


5 properties in question 


Additional 
San Pedro Partners 
property 


Other 
properties 


Subdivision  & 
RV/MH Park 
  
 
 


Nueva Janella to Highway 90-Currently under construction 


  
 
 


Nueva Janella-Future construction 


  
 
 







CONSIDERATIONS REGARDING UTILITY AVAILABILITY 
 


There is minimal infrastructure serving these parcels.  SSVEC provides electric service to the few 
residences.  It is unknown if Southwest Gas has any existing service on these parcels.  Water 
and wastewater are provided by the City and currently there is no infrastructure nor services to 
the parcels in question.   
 
Water 
There are two water wells and tanks in the near vicinity, one behind Comfort Inn and one south 
of Cochise Terrace RV Park.  New infrastructure will be required for the use of these parcels; in 
the 2010 Pre-Annexation agreement, the applicant agrees be responsible for all associated 
costs. An Arizona Department of Water Resources adequate water supply decision and order 
may also be necessary.   
 
Wastewater 
New infrastructure would be required.  In the 2010 Pre-Annexation agreement, the applicant 
agrees to seek and obtain the necessary 208 permit amendment and be responsible for all 
associated costs.  
 











Maximum number of residences allowed per acre  
 


* Total units suitable for living purposes, regardless of type (single family units, individual 
apartment units, individual manufactured homes within a park or on private parcels, etc.) 
 
Maximum-number-of-residences-allowed calculations assume that 100% of the acreage will be 
used for residential purposes, without any acres used for commercial purposes. If acreage is 
used for commercial purposes, this reduces the acreage available for residential use and would 
thus lower the number of potential residential units.  
 
Parcel: 124 10 007C currently High Density Residential, Requesting Commercial:   
Existing Status:  
2,806,004 sq ft= 64.5 acres x zone B-2 allowing 10 residences per acre = approximately 645 
residences allowed; the GDP document implies that no business use is currently allowed in the 
High Density Residential category (see GDP High Density Residential summary below) even 
though the zoning regulations allow business use. 
 
Requested Status: 
Amend to Commercial; residential use would remain a discrepancy between the GDP document 
implications and the Zoning Regulations document.  
 
Recommendation:  
Recommend re-categorizing to Mixed Use because Mixed Use allows both residential use and 
commercial use (see GDP Mixed Use Summary below) 
Total number of allowed residences stays the same (645 maximum) since both High Density 
Residential and Mixed Use allow 10 residences per acre 


GDP Category Number  of 
residences 
allowed* 


Zoning Districts 
allowed within 
GDP Category 


Number of Residences 
allowed in each Zoning 
District 


High Density Residential 10 maximum 
per acre 


R-3, B-1, B-2 R-3: 7 residences maximum 
per acre  
B-1 & B-2: 10 residences 
maximum per acre 


Medium Density 
Residential 


7 maximum 
per acre 


R-1, R-2, R-3 R-1: 6 residences maximum 
per acre 
 R-2 & R-3: 7 residences 
maximum per acre 


Low Density Residential 3 maximum 
per acre 


RT, R-1 RT: 1 residence per 4 acres; 
R-1: 3 residences maximum 
per acre 


Commercial Not specified B-1, B-2 Business use only 


Mixed Use 10 maximum 
per acre 


B-1, B-2 B-1 & B-2: 10 residences per 
acre 







Parcel: 124 01 010G currently High Density Residential, Requesting Commercial: 
Existing Status:  
435,887 sq ft = 10 acres x zone RT allowing 1 residence per 4 acres = 2 residences 
 
High Density Residential allows up to 10 residences per acre when zoned B-1 or B-2.  However, 
this parcel was never rezoned upon annexation.  If rezoned to allow maximum residences 
under the High Density Residential category, this parcel could hold a maximum of 100 
residences.  The GDP document implies that no business use is currently allowed in the High 
Density Residential Category even though the zoning regulations allow business use. 
 
Requested Status: 
Amend to Commercial; residential use would remain a discrepancy between the GDP document 
implications and the Zoning Regulations document.  
 
Recommendation:  
Recommend re-categorizing to Mixed Use because Mixed Use allows both residential use and 
commercial use  
435,887 sq ft = 10 acres x zone B-1 or B-2** allowing 10 residences per acre = 100 residences 
Possibility of 98 additional residences 
**If the GDP re-categorization is approved, then to get either B-1 or B-2 zoning, the property must go through the 
rezoning process.   


 
Parcel: 124 01 010F currently Medium Density Residential, Requesting Commercial: 
Existing Status: 
1,891,833 sq ft = 43.5 acres x zone RT allowing 1 residence per 4 acres = approximately 10 
residences 
Medium Density Residential allows up to 7 residences per acre when zoned R-3.  However, this 
parcel was never rezoned upon annexation.  If rezoned to allow maximum residences under the 
Medium Density Residential category, this parcel could hold a maximum of 304 residences.  
Medium Density Residential does not allow any business development.  (see Medium Density 
Residential summary below) 
 
Requested Status: 
Amend to Commercial; residential use would remain a discrepancy between the GDP document 
implications and the Zoning Regulations document.  
 
Recommendation:  
Recommend re-categorizing to Mixed Use because Mixed Use allows both residential use and 
commercial use  
1,891,833 sq ft = 43.5 acres x zone B-1 or B-2** allowing 10 residences per acre = 
approximately 435 residences 
Possibility of 425 additional residences 
**If the GDP re-categorization is approved, then to get either B-1 or B-2 zoning, the property must go through the 
rezoning process.   







 
Parcel 124 01 010R: currently Commercial, Requesting Commercial: 
Existing Status: 
2, 794,182 sq ft = 64 acres x zone RT allowing 1 residence per 4 acres = 16 residences 
 
Requested Status: 
Remaining Commercial; residential use would remain a discrepancy between the GDP 
document implications and the Zoning Regulations document.  
 
Recommendation:  
Recommend re-categorizing to Mixed Use because Mixed Use allows both residential use and 
commercial use  
2, 794,182sq ft = 64 acres x zone B-1 or B-2** allowing 10 residences per acre = 640 residences 
Possibility of 624 additional residences 
**If the GDP re-categorization is approved, then to get either B-1 or B-2 zoning, the property must go through the 
rezoning process.   
 


Recommend re-categorizing an agreed upon portion of the southeastern part of parcel as 
Buffer per the neighbors’ request.  
 
Parcel 124 01 010Q: currently Commercial, Requesting Commercial: 
Existing Status: 
48,284 = 1 acre x zoned RT allowing 1 residence per 4 acres = NOT USEABLE 
 
Requested Status: 
Remaining Commercial; residential use would remain a discrepancy between the GDP 
document implications and the Zoning Regulations document 
 
Recommendation:  
Recommend categorizing this narrow strip of land the same as Parcel 124 01 010R in the 
interest of visual consistency as this narrow parcel is not buildable.  Recommend re-
categorizing an agreed upon southern portion of this parcel as Buffer per the neighbors’ 
request.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 
 
HDR – High Density Residential 


 


Purpose: This designation provides for high-density residential development within the City. 


The target density of the HDR designation is 10 or more residences per acre; suitable for 


apartment complexes, duplexes, condominium units and townhouses. 


 


Location: As shown on the Proposed Land Use Map, HDR areas comprise a small portion of the 


existing residential area of the City. There are three areas called out specifically for the HDR 


designation, the first is located on the northeast corner of Union Street and Ocotillo Avenue, the 


second is to the east of San Pedro Avenue.  The third is located on West Union Street. 


 


Zoning: Three of the current City of Benson Zoning Districts can be applied to meet the intent 


of the HDR designation, these are: 


 


R-3 (7 residences per acre) 


B-1 (10 residences per acre; when applied to residential use) 


B-2 (10 residences per acre; when applied to residential use) 


 
 
 


MDR - Medium Density Residential 


 


Purpose: This designation provides for medium-density residential development within the City. 


The district serves as a transitional role between the rural character low-density areas and the 


higher-density urban uses. The development density for the MDR designation is 3 to 7 


residences per acre. 


 


Location: As shown on the Proposed Land Use Map, MDR areas comprise the majority of the 


existing residential area of the City and a large portion of the Whetstone Ranch area. 


 


Outside of the City Limits of Benson, the MDR designation has been applied to the Pomerene 


Rd. / Pomerene area. 


 


Zoning: Four of the current City of Benson Zoning Districts can be applied to meet the desired 


development density levels of the MDR designation, these are: 


 


R-1-8 (4-5 residences per acre) 


R-1-7 (5-6 residences per acre) 


R-2 (7 residences per acre) 


R-3 (7 residences per acre)  
 


 
 
 







 
 
MXU - Mixed Use Designation  


 


Purpose: This designation is intended to provide the opportunity for a variety of land use 


activities interspersed with one-another; primarily for commercial development with attendant 


planned residential uses, recreational uses, recreational vehicle parks and planned area 


developments.  


 


Location: The primary MXU designation area is the approximately six-mile stretch of the SR 90 


between its intersection with Cottonwood Canyon Wash and Kartchner Caverns State Park. 


Other areas include the 18-hole golf course on the City’s eastern boundary adjacent to the San 


Pedro River. 


  


Zoning: Two of the current City of Benson Zoning Districts can be applied to meet the goals of 


the MXU designation. 


  


B-1 (10 residences per acre; in conjunction with commercial/business uses) 


B-2 (10 residences per acre; in conjunction with commercial/business uses) 


 







mjohnson

Oval

San Pedro Partners and Harlan requested from LDR/C to all C.McDonald property would be part of annexation but has not requested to be reclassified as C.Triple L/MacKenzie property directly S of SPP/Harlan properties.



mjohnson

Callout

124-01-010G, F, R, & Q were OUTSIDE city limits and categorized LDR or C.124-01-007C&D were annexed INSIDE city limits in 2005 and Categorized HDR per Resolution 61-2006.



mjohnson

Callout

2006 ORIGINAL MAP







mjohnson

Typewritten Text

 



mjohnson

Rectangle



mjohnson

Typewritten Text

Parcels 124-01-010G&Fwere re-categorized to HDR.Parcels 124-01-010R&Q were re-categorized to C.Parcels are still OUTSIDEcity limits.  Annexationoccurred in 2011.



mjohnson

Typewritten Text

2009 Map: Resolution 75-2009 map amendment







mjohnson

Text Box

26-2010 amended parcel 124-01-010F toMDR.  27-2010 & 28-2010confirmed C for allother parcels.Parcelsare still OUTSIDEcity limits-annexed in 2011.



mjohnson

Typewritten Text

2010 Map: Resolutions 26-2010, 27-2010, 28-2010 amendments



mjohnson

Oval







mjohnson

Typewritten Text

Proposed 2013 Amendments to the GDP Map



mjohnson

Rectangle



mjohnson

Typewritten Text

The applicant proposes that all parcels beamended to C. 4 of the 5 parcels are now INSIDE city limits.  



mjohnson

Oval







mjohnson

Rectangle



mjohnson

Typewritten Text

Recommended 2013 Amendments to the GDP Map



mjohnson

Typewritten Text

Staff recommends that all 5 parcels be amended to MXU with a small B areaabutting Kartchner Vistasubdivision.  4 of 5 parcelsare in city limits.



mjohnson

Oval







 


 


PLANNING AND ZONING MINUTES 


MINUTES OF THE BENSON PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 


NOVEMBER 21, 2013 


 


1.  CALL TO ORDER- Chairman Cliff Deane called the meeting to order at 7:14pm. 


 


2. PLEDGE- Chairman Cliff Deane led the pledge.  


 


3.  ROLL CALL-Cliff Deane, Jim Thelander, Bob Baden, Debra Braatz, Randy Robichaud and David 


Thompson were present.  Angel de la Torre was absent. A quorum was present.  


 


4.  CALL TO PUBLIC-There was no answer to the call.  


 


5.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES-  


August 6, 2013 


Commissioner David Thompson motioned to approve the minutes.  Commissioner Jim Thelander 


seconded.  Motion passed 6-0. 


 


6.  PUBLIC HEARING 


Chairman Cliff Deane opened the Public Hearing at 7:15pm.  


 


Mr. Roland Arney introduced himself, stating he lives in the Meritage subdivision.  He acknowledged 


the he was not present for the Citizen Review, but that he had talked with various neighbors and the 


main concern is access through the subdivision, specifically increased usage of the dirt road behind the 


Comfort Inn.   


 


Building Official Luis Garcia confirmed the dirt road is actually a utility easement and is not on the 


property under discussion.  He also stated that generally a utility easement is not public access anyway.  


Applicant Jerry DeGrazia confirmed that two access routes are already known-the existing Titan Road 


and the new Nueva Janella that is under construction.  Mr. DeGrazia also mentioned the potential for a 


third access to the properties using the light near Taco Bell.  He confirmed that there would not be 


access through the existing subdivision.  


 


Jerry DeGrazia had two map displays with him, showing the existing GDP categories and the area of the 


proposed Commercial category.  He pointed out that two of the five parcels in question, owned by 


Jimmy Harlan, are already categorized as Commercial.   


 


Mr. George Scott introduced himself as representing the Southeastern Arizona Economic Development 


Group.  He stated the group is in favor of the change in order to foster economic growth around the I-


10/Hwy 90 interchange.  


 


Mr. Jimmy Harlan, the owner of two parcels under consideration, stated he is in favor of the amendment 


in hopes of providing land for economic growth and new tax revenue, possibly big box stores.  He stated 


he believes the physical development would take place over a long period.  


 


There were no more speakers so the Public Hearing closed at 7:27pm.  







 


 


 


7. OLD BUSINESS-There was no old business. 


 


8.  NEW BUSINESS 


GDP Amendment of approximately 183 acres to Commercial 


Chairman Cliff Deane invited the applicant Jerry DeGrazia to speak.  Mr. DeGrazia displayed his two 


maps to the Commission, pointing out the parcels under consideration and the parcels not under 


consideration.  He explained that the five parcels currently are categorized as a combination of 


Residential and Commercial, and that he is requesting all 5 parcels be categorized as Commercial. Mr. 


DeGrazia specifically pointed out that he is NOT requesting a change for the southernmost parcel 


currently designated as High Density Residential.   


 


Vice Chair Randy Robichaud asked how far south the properties extend from Titan Road and Mr. 


DeGrazia replied the southern boundary is approximately 4/10 of a mile south of Titan Road.  Vice 


Chair Randy Robichaud asked if such a depth is necessary and Mr. DeGrazia responded that since he 


doesn’t know what will happen to the property over the next many years, he would like to have the land 


prepared.  Mr. DeGrazia further acknowledged that preparing the area includes items such as installing 


infrastructure, maintaining the assured water supply and designing access points, one of which is already 


in the process with the construction of Nueva Janella.  He stressed that his goal is to prepare a complete 


package for future developers, using the proximity of the railroad, interstate and airports.   


 


Chairman Cliff Deane confirmed that the application is asking for the Commercial category to which 


Mr. DeGrazia replied that he wants the entire area designed Commercial to the effect that the existing 


residential area needs to be re-categorized and the existing commercial area would be confirmed.   


 


Chairman Cliff Deane asked staff to explain the recommendation of the Mixed Use category instead of 


the requested Commercial category.  Planning Technician Michelle Johnson explained, as was submitted 


in the P&Z packet, that there are potential conflicts between the GDP document and the Zoning 


Regulations as to what land uses are actually allowed under the various GDP categories, even though the 


zoning district remains the same.  She explained that the GDP category Commercial specifically allows 


zoning district B-2 commercial uses, but does not explicitly encourage B-2 residential uses.  The High 


Density Residential GDP category specifically addresses zoning district B-2 residential uses, but does 


not explicitly encourage B-2 commercial uses.  Therefore, there is an open conflict as to which 


document controls…the limited uses in the GDP document or the “full” uses as listed in the Zoning 


Regulations.  Planning Technician Michelle Johnson further explained the GDP category Mixed Use 


specifically encourages both residential and commercial uses as permitted under the B-2 zoning district.  


Thus, the Mixed Use category is the only GDP category that does not cause a potential conflict between 


documents when actual construction is proposed in the future.  


 


Commissioner Dave Thompson asked if there were required percentages of land to be used for 


commercial vs. residential in the Mixed Use category to which Planning Technician Michelle Johnson 


responded there were not; 100% acreage could be used for commercial, 100% acreage could be used for 


residential or any combination between.  When asked by Commissioner Dave Thompson about taxation, 


Michelle Johnson replied that both residential and commercial development increases the tax base, but 


the specific rates are either set by the Assessor for property taxes and by a combination of city, county 


and state for sales tax rates for commercial uses.     







 


 


City Prosecutor Anne Roberts, privately representing the applicant Jerry DeGrazia, interjected that the 


meeting is simply to discuss land designation, which can be changed if the applicant wishes to reapply in 


the future.  She noted that some questions the Commission may have cannot be answered at this time.  


Anne Roberts also noted that the legislative process takes time and she stated her disagreement with 


Planning Technician Michelle Johnson’s position, commenting that the B-2 zoning (already existing on 


one parcel currently categorized as High Density Residential) was intended to be inclusive. Ann Roberts 


stressed that the Commission must either approve or deny the application as submitted because that was 


what was advertised.  


 


Vice Chair Randy Robichaud questioned the zoning of the existing HDR parcel to which Anne Roberts 


replied that changing the GDP category does not change the existing zoning.  


 


Commissioner Jim Thelander voiced his concern about access to the properties, noting that apparently 


any usage of the property is up to the state’s approval since they control access.  Anne Roberts 


acknowledged that ADOT’s objection to using Titan Road as an access route had been known.  


Applicant Jerry DeGrazia also agreed that access was a concern and that traffic studies will be required 


when the specific land use is decided upon.  He stated that the design and construction of Nueva Janella 


will open up the properties from south but that he still knows other access is required and he’s 


considering a new road at the existing light near Taco Bell/KFC.  Commissioner Jim Thelander 


questioned whether the references in the application to Titan Road as an main access way were in error 


to which Jerry DeGrazia replied that he is not worried about Titan Road’s current size or acceptability 


because he’s aware that any development to the northern properties will require improved access, 


whether that’s via Titan Road or his idea to create a roadway using the existing light.  He stated that 


Nueva Janella will be over 100’ wide and is designed to be a major route into the area, likely leaving 


Titan Road as the least important access over the next years.  


 


Jerry DeGrazia further stated that he’s uncomfortable with the Mixed Use category, believing the 


Commercial category is cleaner with the B-2 zoning district. 


 


Commissioner Debra Braatz questioned how many residents are in the area and asked if the existing 


Medium Density Residential parcel is also currently zoned B-2.  Jerry DeGrazia responded that there is 


one empty house, but no residents and that the parcel category Medium Density Residential is not 


currently zoned B-2; he restated that the only parcel currently zoned B-2 is the parcel designated as High 


Density Residential.   


 


Vice Chair Randy Robichaud stated his opinion that he doesn’t mind either the Commercial or Mixed 


Use designation, and then asked about the recommended Buffer area.  Jerry DeGrazia replied that he felt 


it was too early in the process to discuss a buffer, though he acknowledged that the concerns are valid.  


He believes 300 feet as requested by the neighbors is too large and suggested that an acceptable 


separation be discussed during the rezoning and site development phases.  City Prosecutor Anne 


Roberts, privately representing the applicant, asked why a buffer designation was even being discussed 


to which Chairman Cliff Deane replied that staff had recommended a buffer.  Building Official Luis 


Garcia interjected that at the zoning phase, there are no tools to require land use separation so any no-


build distance would be on the good faith of the developer at the time.  


 







 


 


Commissioner Bob Baden asked if the Commercial designation allows multiple zoning uses to which 


applicant Jerry DeGrazia replied that the Commercial designation provides the general idea that the area 


is for non-residential use, though the permitted uses of the B-2 zoning district do allow both residential 


and commercial uses.  Mr. Jerry DeGrazia reiterated that he’d be back in the future to request a 


rezoning, which will specify acceptable land uses.   


 


Chairman Cliff Deane asked Anne Roberts what would occur to the process if the designation of Mixed 


Use and/or Commercial and/or Buffer were recommended.   She replied that since neither Mixed Use 


nor Buffer designations were advertised, those designations could not be granted.  Chairman Cliff Deane 


commented that the process would need to start over with those designations so it appears to him that 


Mixed Use and Buffer go against the application and the choices are limited to recommending 


Commercial as requested or to recommend denying the application.   


 


Anne Roberts stated that the point of the GDP document is to choose land use and if the concern was the 


buffer area, then that can be dealt with later.  Building Official Luis Garcia interjected that it was a 


unique situation to have the same attorney who is representing the applicant answer questions for the 


Commission, even at the Chair’s request.  He stated that staff included the Buffer category because the 


current zoning regulations do not have a buffer-type open space zoning district so there is no means of 


requiring open space further in the process.   


 


Chairman Cliff Deane confirmed that under the Commercial designation, the entire area could be 


rezoned to B-2.  


 


Vice Chair Randy Robichaud motioned to recommend to Mayor and Council that the approximately 183 


acres be re-categorized to Commercial, as submitted.  Commission Jim Thelander seconded.  Motion 


passed 6-0.     


 


Commissioner Dave Thompson motioned to adjourn.  Vice-Chair Randy Robichaud seconded.  Meeting 


adjourned at 8:11pm.  


 


 









		NB 2 - CC - GDP Amendment San Pedro

		NB 2 - Exhibit 1 - Resolution Degrazia GDP

		NB 2 - Exhibit 2 - Analysis

		NB 2 - Exhibit 3 - SPP GDP application revised

		NB 2 - Exhibit 4 - GDP SPP CR notes

		NB 2 - Exhibit 5 - GDP SPP CR Sign in

		NB 2 - Exhibit 6 - Neighbors-comments

		NB 2 - Exhibit 7 - Neighbors-response to Council

		NB 2 - Exhibit 8 - ADOT-comments

		NB 2 - Exhibit 9 - ADOT-response to

		NB 2 - Exhibit 10 - CONSIDERATIONS REGRADING UTILITY AVAILABILITY

		NB 2 - Exhibit 11 - Ft Huachuca note

		NB 2 - Exhibit 12 - RAC comparison

		NB 2 - Exhibit 13 - 2006 GDP Map

		NB 2 - Exhibit 14 - GDP map 75-2009 amendments

		NB 2 - Exhibit 15 - GDP map 262728-2010 amendments

		NB 2 - Exhibit 16 - GDP map 2013 PROPOSAL

		NB 2 - Exhibit 17 - GDP map 2013 RECOMMENDED

		NB 2 - Exhibit 18 - November 21 Special Meeting Minutes NO NOTE

		NB 2 - Exhibit 19 - GDP SPP PH Sign in










                                                                                                                                                                                  
             


      


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Discussion:  
 


At the November 14, 2013 Council meeting, Council directed Staff to enter into contract negotiations with Mr. 
William Stephens.  A draft contract has been prepared and sent to Mr. Stephens.  In speaking with him, he 
mentioned the recent tornadoes and that he would have the contract reviewed and back to the City as soon as 
he could.  This item has been placed on the agenda to allow Council to discuss the draft contract, should it be 
received before the meeting.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


 


Staff Recommendation:   
 
Council pleasure 


To: Mayor and Council                                         Agenda Item # 3 
                                               
From: Bradley J. Hamilton, P.E., Interim City Manager/Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
           
 
 


 


 


Subject:  
 
Discussion and possible action in approving an employment contract with William Stephens for the position of 
City Manager  
 
 
 
 
 
 


City of  Benson 
      City Council Communication  
 
Regular Meeting                December 9, 2013 
 








                                                                                                                                                                                  
             


      


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Discussion:  
 
This item is on the agenda at the request of Vice Mayor Sacco and Councilmember Boyle.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Staff Recommendation:  
 
Council pleasure 


To: Mayor and Council                                         Agenda Item # 4 
                                               
From: Vice Mayor Sacco and Councilmember Boyle    
           
 
 


 


 


Subject:   
 
Discussion and possible direction to Staff to evaluate the performance of the present IT contractor  
  


City of  Benson 
      City Council Communication  
 
Regular Meeting                December 9, 2013 








                                                                                                                                                                                  
             


      


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Discussion:  
 
This item is on the agenda at the request of Vice Mayor Sacco and Councilmember Boyle.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Staff Recommendation:  
 
Council pleasure 


To: Mayor and Council                                         Agenda Item # 5 
                                               
From: Vice Mayor Sacco and Councilmember Boyle    
           
 
 


 


 


Subject:   
 
Discussion and possible direction to instruct the City Attorney regarding allegations that Mr. Jim Cox violated 
the City’s procurement code  


City of  Benson 
      City Council Communication  
 
Regular Meeting                December 9, 2013 








PUBLIC NOTICE 
City of Benson 


Public Hearing Regarding Use of CDBG Funds 
 
The City of Benson is expected to receive approximately $170,697 in FY 2014 Federal 


Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds from the Arizona Department of 


Housing Regional Account (RA).  The City may also apply for the for the next or all 


future State Special Project (SSP) funds.  CDBG and SSP funds must be used to 


benefit low-income persons and areas, alleviate slum and blight, or address urgent 


need. 


 


Two public hearings will be held to gather citizen input on the use of CDBG funds.  The 


public hearings will be held the following dates and times: 


 


Monday, December 9, 2013 


7:00 pm 


City of Benson Council Chambers 


120 W. 6th Street 


Benson, AZ 85602 


 


 


Monday, December 23, 2013 


7:00 pm 


City of Benson Council Chambers 


120 W. 6th Street 


Benson, AZ 85602 


Samples of projects that can use CDBG or SSP funds include: 


1. Public Infrastructure (e.g., water, wastewater, street improvement); 


2. Community Facilities (e.g., fire and police facilities; senior or homeless facilities); 


3. Housing (e.g., owner-occupied or multi-family rehab, utility connections on private property): 


4. Public Services (e.g., fair housing services, services for seniors or homeless, lead hazard 


screening); 


And 
5.   Economic Development (e.g., job development or retention) 
 
For more information about the hearing, grievances, the CDBG program, or to receive assistance 
in formulating prospective project ideas for presentation at the hearing contact: 
 
Brad Hamilton, P.E., Public Works Director 
120 W. 6th Street 
Benson, AZ 85602 
Phone (520) 720-6325 
Fax (520) 720-6339 
 
 
All Facilities are handicapped accessible.  If you have a special accessibility need, please contact Vicki L. Vivian, City Clerk, at 
(520) 720-6311 or TDD: (520) 586-3624, no later than eight (8) hours before the scheduled meeting time. 
 


Published: November 20 & 27, 2013







 








 


LEGAL NOTICE 
 


CITY OF BENSON 
CITY COUNCIL 


PUBLIC HEARING 
DECEMBER 9, 2013 – 7:00 P.M. 


 
 


GENERAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN AMENDMENT 
 


THE CITY COUNCIL WILL HOLD A PUBLIC HEARING ON THE PROPOSED MAJOR 
AMENDMENT TO THE GENERAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR A PROPOSED MAP 
AMENDMENT (LAND USE DESIGNATION).  THE PUBLIC HEARING WILL BE HELD ON 
DECEMBER 9, 2013 AT 7:00 P.M. AT BENSON CITY HALL, 120 W. 6TH STREET, BENSON, 
ARIZONA. 
 
 
       _______________________________ 
       Vicki L. Vivian, CMC, City Clerk 
 


 


The City of Benson’s City Council will hold a Public Hearing on December 9, 2013 at 7:00 p.m. at the Benson 


City Council Chambers, 120 W. 6th Street, Benson AZ  85602. 


 


The purpose of this public hearing will be to receive comments from the public regarding the proposed MAJOR 


AMENDMENT TO THE GENERAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR A PROPOSED MAP AMENDMENT 


(LAND USE DESIGNATION).  


 


San Pedro Partners proposes to amend 5 parcels totaling approximately 183 acres from residential to 


commercial.  The five parcels are: 124-01-007C, 124-01-010G, 124-01-010F, 124-01-010R and 124-01-010Q.  


These parcels are located in the southwest corner of the Interstate 10 and Highway 90 intersection, behind 


Comfort Inn and west of Kartchner Vista subdivision.  These parcels are currently accessed by Titan Road 


(frontage road).   


 


All facilities are handicapped accessible.  If you have a special accessibility need, please contact Vicki L. 


Vivian, City Clerk at (520) 586-2245 or TDD: (520) 586-3624, no later than eight (8) hours before the 


scheduled meeting time.  


 


 


 


 


Parcels in Question 
5th parcel is 
a narrow 
strip along 
the eastern 


edge 


POSTED this 20th day of November, 2013 


PUBLISHED this 20th day of November, 2013 


PUBLISHED this 27th day of November, 2013 








Page 1 of 2 


CITY OF BENSON 
CITY COUNCIL 


DECEMBER 9, 2013 – 7:00 P.M.  
REGULAR MEETING              


 


A REGULAR MEETING OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF BENSON, ARIZONA  


WILL BE HELD ON DECEMBER 9, 2013 AT 7:00 P.M.,  


AT BENSON CITY HALL,  


120 W. 6TH STREET, BENSON, ARIZONA       


 


                                                                               _________________________________ 


                                                                                      Vicki L. Vivian, CMC, City Clerk 


 


A M E N D E D 


A G E N D A 


 


The Council may discuss, consider and take possible action pertaining to the following: 


 


CALL TO ORDER:  The Call to Order will consist of the Mayor calling the Council to order.  The Mayor or his 


designee shall then lead those present in the Pledge of Allegiance before introducing the invocation speaker, who will 


offer the invocation. 


 


ROLL CALL:  The City Clerk shall call the roll of the members, and the names of those present shall be entered in 


the minutes. 


 


EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION:  The Mayor shall use this time to present employment awards to those City 


employees or to present recognition awards for specific acts regarding public service, if any.   


 


PROCLAMATION:  None   


 


PUBLIC HEARING:  The Mayor and Council will be available to receive comments from the public regarding the 


use of approximately $170,697 in Fiscal Year 2014 Federal Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds 


from the Arizona Department of Housing Regional Account (RA).  


 


PUBLIC HEARING:  The Mayor and Council will hold a public hearing to receive comments from the public 


regarding the proposed Major Amendment to the General Development Plan for a proposed Map Amendment (Land 


Use Designation).   


 


CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Communications and comments from the citizens regarding the City of Benson or other 


matters properly addressed to the City Council shall be heard by the Council.  Such remarks shall be addressed to the 


Council as a whole and shall be limited to five (5) minutes unless additional time is granted by the Council.  ** 


 


CITY MANAGER REPORT:  The City Manager will update and inform the public of specific items of interest 


regarding City matters. 


 


EXECUTIVE SESSION:  Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03 (A)(3) & (4), for discussion or consultation for legal advice 


with the attorney or attorneys of the public body regarding the City’s position and to instruct its attorney(s) regarding 


pending litigation, Stagecoach Trails Mobile Home Court (MHC) vs. the City of Benson, Arizona, et. al. and 1983 


Civil Rights Claim – Stagecoach Trails Mobile Home Court (MHC), LLC and Jay Kendrick  vs. the City of Benson, 


Arizona, et al. and 1983 Civil Rights Claim – Dianne Tipton vs. the City of Benson, Arizona, et. al. 


 


NEW BUSINESS: 


 


1. Consent Agenda:  ***      


1a. Minutes of the November 12, 2013 Special Meeting  * 


1b. Minutes of the November 14, 2013 Special Meeting  * 


1c. Invoices processed for the period from November 15, 2013 through November 29, 2013  * 


 


2. Resolution 33-2013 of the Mayor and Council of the City of Benson, Arizona, approving as part of a Major 


Amendment to the General Development Plan the Redesignation of approximately 183 acres of land from High 


Density Residential and Medium Density Residential to Commercial – Luis Garcia, Building Official/Zoning 


Administrator  * 


 


EXECUTIVE SESSION:  As per A.R.S. §38-431.03 (A)(1), (3) & (4), Discussion or consideration of employment, 


assignment, appointment, promotion, salaries, or resignation of a public officer, appointee or employee of the City.  


The Council will discuss and consider the appointment and employment contract of the City Manager, and may receive 


legal advice and give instructions to the City Attorney 







Page 2 of 2 


 


3. Discussion and possible action in approving an employment contract with William Stephens for the position of  


City Manager – Brad Hamilton, P.E., Interim City Manager/Public Works Director/City Engineer  * 


 


4. Discussion and possible direction to Staff to evaluate the performance of the present IT contractor – Vice Mayor 


Sacco and Councilmember Boyle 
 


EXECUTIVE SESSION:  As per A.R.S. §38-431.03 (A)(3), Discussion or consultation for legal advice with the 


attorney or attorneys of the public body regarding Mr. Jim Cox allegedly violating the procurement code.   


 


5. Discussion and possible direction to instruct the City Attorney regarding allegations that Mr. Jim Cox violated the 


City’s procurement code – Vice Mayor Sacco and Councilmember Boyle   


 


DEPARTMENT REPORTS:  Written Department Reports will be provided to Councilmembers as part of the 


Council packet monthly. 


 


ADJOURNMENT 


  


POSTED this 6th day of December, 2013 


 


Material related to the City Council meeting is available for public review the day before and the day of the meeting, 


during office hours, at the City Clerk’s Office located at 120 W. 6th Street, Benson, Arizona, 520-586-2245 x 2011. 


 


All facilities are handicapped accessible.  If you have a special accessibility need, please contact Vicki L. Vivian, City 


Clerk, at (520) 586-2245 or TDD: (520) 586-3624, no later than eight (8) hours before the scheduled meeting time.   


 


Any invocation that may be offered before the start of regular Council business shall be the voluntary offering of a 


private citizen, for the benefit of the Council and the citizens present.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation 


speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the Council, and the Council does not endorse the religious 


beliefs or views of this, or any other speaker. 


 


Executive Session – Upon a vote of the majority of the City Council, the Council may enter into Executive Session 


pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes §38-431.03 (A)(3) (legal advice) to obtain legal advice on matters listed on the 


Agenda. 


 


* Denotes an Exhibit in addition to the Council Communication 


 


** Call to the Public 


 


Arizona Revised Statutes §38-431.01(H) provides that “A public body may make an open call to the public during a 


public meeting, subject to reasonable time, place and manner restrictions to allow individuals to address the public 


body on any issue within the jurisdiction of the public body.  At the conclusion of an open call to the public, individual 


members of the public body may respond to criticism made by those who have addressed the public body, may ask 


staff to review a matter or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  However, members of the public body 


shall not discuss or take legal action on matters raised during an open call to the public unless the matters are properly 


noticed for discussion and legal action.”  As such, Call to the Public agenda items are provided as a courtesy to allow 


citizens an opportunity to voice any concerns or opinions they may have regarding the City of Benson or other matters 


properly addressed to the City Council.  However, in accordance with Arizona law, citizens need to understand that the 


City Council is not permitted to enter into a direct discussion with the citizens speaking on any issues of concern 


during the Call to the Public and no legal action can be taken, unless the matter is properly noticed on the agenda. 


 


In order to speak during the Call to the Public, please complete the Call to the Public form requesting to do so. 


 


*** Consent Agenda 


 


The Consent Agenda will be the first item under New Business and shall list separately distinct items requiring action 


by the City Council that are generally routine items not requiring Council discussion.  A single motion will approve all 


items on the Consent Agenda, including any resolutions or ordinances, or claims/invoices that are of a routine nature.  


A Councilmember may remove any issue from the Consent Agenda, and that issue will be discussed and voted upon 


separately, immediately following the Consent Agenda under its proper regular category of New Business. 








City of Benson 


December  20 1 3  
S u n M o n  T u e W e d  T hu  F r i  S a t  


1 2 3 4 5 6 7 


8 9 10 11 12 13 14 


15 16 17 18 19 20 21 


22 23 24 25 26 27 28 


29 30 31 1    


FOR MORE INFORMATION VISIT WWW.CITYOFBENSON.COM  


 


Christmas Day - 
City Offices 
Closed  


Library Advisory 
Board 4:00 p.m. 


Christmas on Main -  
Festival of Lights  
Craft Fair 
 


Shop with a Cop Event  
 


The Season’s Traditions 
Light Parade  


City Council  
Worksession 6:00 p.m. 
 
CDBG Public Hearing, 


City Council Meeting 
7:00 p.m. 


Christmas Eve - 
City Offices Closed  


New Year’s Eve - 
City Offices Closed  


New Year’s Day - 
City Offices 
Closed  







Meetings   


 
 
Tuesday, December 10, 2013 –  Library Advisory Board, 4:00 p.m., Library  
      
Monday, December 23, 2013  –  City Council Worksession, 6:00 p.m., City Hall 
     CDBG Public Hearing, 7:00 p.m., City Hall 
     City Council Meeting, 7:00 p.m., City Hall             
 
 
 
 


Events 


 
 
ADOT Project Closures  –  See www.azdot.gov for more information 
 


   Saturday, December 14, 2013 – The Season’s Traditions Light Parade, 6:30 p.m.  Prizes 
will be given for 1st, 2nd, and 3rd place and a donation to 
a charity of the winner’s choice for 1st, 2nd, and 3rd place.  
More information can be found on the City’s website,  
www.cityofbenson.com under “What to do today”   


 
    Christmas on Main along with a mini-carnival hosted by 


the Benson/San Pedro Valley Chamber of Commerce, 
8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m. at 4th and Land Streets.  For more 
information, see the Benson/San Pedro Valley Chamber of 
Commerce website, www.bensonchamberaz.org   


 
    Festival of Lights Craft Fair, 8:00 a.m. - 8:00 p.m., Benson 


Museum, 180 S. San Pedro Street.  More information can 
be found on the City’s website, www.cityofbenson.com 
under “What to do today” 


 
    Shop with a Cop Event 


 
Tuesday and Wednesday, 
December 24 and 25, 2013  –   Christmas Holidays – City Offices Closed  
 
Tuesday and Wednesday, 
December 31, 2013  
and January 1, 2014  –   New Year’s Holidays – City Offices Closed  



http://www.azdot.gov/

http://www.cityofbenson.com/

http://www.bensonchamberaz.org/

http://www.cityofbenson.com/



		12 - December 2013 2

		12-9-13 City Manager Report












